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The Yukon Legislative Assembly 
Tuesday, March 11, 1978 

Whitehorse. Yukon Territorv. 
Tuesda~· . :VIarch 16th. l!i76. 

\1r. Speaker reads Daily Prayer . 

Mr. Speaker: \1adam Clerk. is there a quorum pre­
sent'! 

:\1adam Clerk: There is. :'llr. Speaker . 

Mr. Speaker : I will now call the House to order. 

ROUTI NE PROCEEDINGS 

DAILY ROUTINE 

:vtr. Speaker: Prior to Orders of the Day this morn­
ing. the House photographer has requested· permission 
to take a picture of this Legislature and. accordingly. I 
think at this time we would permit the House photo­
gr apher to take his photographs. 

We will proceed wi th the Order Paper .. \re there 
any documents or correspondence for tabling? The 
Honourable Member from Hootalinqua"? 

Mr. Fleming: I rise on a point of privilege this 
morning, Mr . Speaker. Some time ago I asked for some 
papers on Information Services from Mr. Gillesp ie and 
there was some confusion as to whether I had gotten 
them or not. He did give them to me Thursday and I 
would like it be known to the House that I do now have 
these papers. 

Mr. Speaker: Right. Are there any documents or 
correspondence for tabling? The Honourable Member 
from Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker. I have for tabl­
ing this morning Legislative Return number 11. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Reports of Commit­
tees? Introduction of Bills? Are there any Notices of 
:Yiollon or Resolution? The Honourable \1ember from 
Kluane·> 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker. I'd like to give Notice of 
Motion. seconded by the Honourable Member from 
Riverdale, that the Government of U1e Yukon review 
The Electrical Public Utilities Ordinance to determine 
if amendments are needed m order that the Electncal 
Public Utilities Board can function with the required 
authority on behalf of Yukon consumers. 

:vir. Speaker: The Honourable \lember from 
Whitehorse South Cen tre "! 

:vir. Hibberd: \lr. Speaker. I'd like to give :'-loticeof 
Motion. seconded by the Honourable Member from 
Pelly. regarding the Yukon participation in the Western 
Canada Lottery. 

\-1r. Speaker : The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Ri verdale'? 

Mr. Lengerke: :VI r Speaker. I'd like to give Notice 
of :vJotiOn . myself . the Honourable :vtember f rom 
Kluane. with respect to the Yukon Water Board. 

:vtr. Speaker : Are there any fur ther Notices of Mo­
t ion'? The Honourable :Vtember from Whitehorse River­
dale '? 

Mr. Lengerke: Notice of Motion with respect to the 
Public Utilities Board submission. moved by myself. 
seconded by the Honourable Member f rom Kluane. that 
whereas the Yukon Public Util ities Board is considering 
evidence as gained from a recently held Public Hearing 
in connection with theN .C.P.C. proposed electrical rate 
increases and whereas a brief was presented on behalf 
of the Yukon Territor ial Government. be it resolved 
that the Yukon Legislative Assembly submits to the 
Yukon Publ ic Utilities Board copies of all resolutions 
passed during the 5th Session of the 23rd Legislature 
per ta ining to the proposed electrical rate increases and 
a Yukon Power Authority and that this Assembly em­
phasizes to the Board that it is this Assembly's position 
that the Government of Canada should bear the cost of 
all expenditures incurred by the Northern Canada 
Power Commission in the development of projects 
which are attributed to na tiona! objectives. and further. 
this Legislative Assembly is firmly of the opinion that 
N.C.P.C. should be accountable to a Yukon public body 
which is representative of the consumer or user service. 

\1r. Speaker: Are there any further not ices of mo­
tion or resolution'' Are there any notices of motion for 
the production of papers? We \'iill then proceed to the 
question period. Have you any questions., 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

QUESTT001 PERIOD 

Mr. Commisc;ioner: Mr. Speaker. with your per­
rnb~inn I haw <tll it •m here concerning a question 



asked by :vlr. Lengerke. On :\larch lith. :\1r. Lengerke 
asked whether there was any change in the federal pol­
icy with respect to the leasiag of lake front property at 
the Marsh Lake main beach area. the Army Beach and 
the McClintock Bay area. · 

Mr. Speaker. I have been informed by the Federal 
Lands Office that the only change in policy relates to the 
\1inister's announcement last year that long term lease 
renewals will be available on approved recreational 
sub-divisions subject to compliance with the lease co­
venants. Long term lease renewals are therefore being 
made available and legally surveyed and properly de­
signated recreational sub-divisions in the Marsh Lake 
area where. for example. any required water frontal­
lowance was made by survey and where proper access 
and other requirements are met. 

In other cases. the present short term renewal will 
continue; however. the Department of Indian and 
Northern Affairs is reviewing these to determine 
whether any other- whether any are suitable for up­
grading and designation as sub-divisions. Beyond that. 
Mr. Speaker, there has been no change in the federal 
policy concerning recreational leases and none to my 
knowledge is currently being contemplated . 

Mr. Speaker: llave you any questions? The Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse West'' 

Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I have a matter of in­
formation of interest to the House of-- earlier during this 
session I referred to the fact that there was to be an 
appointment of a senior official from the Department of 
Federal Health and Welfare who would aetas chairman 
on a committee to establish procedure and time tables 
for transfer of responsibilities for health services from 
the Federal Department to the Territorial GQvernment 
Department. 

We have now been informed by the Deputy Minister 
of Medical Services Branch in Ottawa that the Public 
Service Commission has appointed Mr. J . R. Fleming 
as Senior Consultant, Northern Health, and in addition 
to other duties he will act as the Branch's principal 
negotiator and advisor on the terms and timing of the 
transfer of the health service to the Territorial Gov­
ernment. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Regarding that to be, Honourable 
Minister , do we have any knowledge of the qualifica­
tions of this person regarding this matter? 

Mr. Speaker: Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Mrs. Whyard: Yes, Mr. Speaker, Mr. Fleming has a 
background of service with the government of Alberta 
in a number of positions in Industry, Labour and Per­
sonnel Offices; joined the Federal Department of 
Health Medical Services in '68, when he was Chief of 
Finance and Administration of Prairie Region. The fol­
lowing year, the Members of the House will be in­
terested to know, he was granted leave to undertake an 

assignment with International Atomic Agenc~· in \'10· 
nna. which may be very helnful for his duties in the 
:'olorth. While with this organization. he was responsible 
for planning and implementing . as part of an o\·erall 
United Nat ions plan to improve its financial nHtnagc­
ment methods. a program planning and budgeting and 
performance budgeting system. :\1r. Speaker. I would 
think that he is eminently qualified to assist in transfer 
of medical health services. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there further-- the Honourable 
:\1ember from Whitehorse North Centre'' 

Questwn re: Leasing 

Hon. :vtr. McKinnon: :vlr. Speaker. supplementar y to 
the question answered by the Commissioner this morn­
ing. am I to understand, Mr . Commissioner. from your 
answer that only an approved subdivision by the federal 
government that they have subdivided and constructed 
and leased well long term 30 years leases be available. 
and all the other leaseholders in the Tagish-Marsh area. 
even though they've had short term leases for some 30 
years. will still only be eligible for short term leases? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker. reading from the 
answer. I would feel that the third paragraph is the i tern 
of interest to the Honourable Member; in other cases. 
the present short term renewal will continue; however. 
the Department of lAND is reviewing these to deter­
mine whether any are suitable for upgrading and desig­
nation as subdivisions. So I think that the basic question 
as asked by the Honourable Member, which I person­
ally quite understand, Mr. Speaker, would appear to me 
that the areas in which these are located are being sub­
ject to review to see if they can be upgraded to permit 
long term leases. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Well , supplementary, Mr. 
Chairman, that means even if the- Mr. Speaker to Mr. 
Commissioner- even if people do not want the upgrad­
ing, whatever that maintains, to subdivision status that 
the Federal Government wants, that in those instances 
they will not be eligible for long term leases unless the 
Federal Government designates it through upgrading 
that it is now going to be a recreational subdivision. 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner ? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, on the basis of 
what I have before me, it would appear that the assump­
tions made by the Honourable Member are correct but I 
would like to have the opportunity of checking that out 
just a little bit further, please, Mr. Speaker. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, another sup­
plementary, was that the understanding that Mr. 
Commissioner had when the Minister's announcement 
came through, that long term leases were going to be 
available not only to people in the new Federal Recrea­
tional Subdivision but also to legitimate leaseholders 
other than in the new recreational subdivision on 
Tag ish-Marsh Lake chain, and indeed all other Lakes in 
the Yukon Territory. 
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\1r. Commissioner : I must admit that my orig ina l 
understanding of the :\lmister·s announcement was 
that. so long as the lease was in good sta nding . that the 
conversion from short term to long •nn was to be effec­
tive ly on an automatic-- maybe that'::. not the right 
word. :vir. Speaker. but it was to be a taken-for-granted 
type of tra nsaction . 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale"1 

Mr. Lengerke: Supplementary to that too. Mr. 
Speaker. I've asked the Commissioner then. would it be 
your unders tanding Mr. Commissioner that from the 
information that you've got that really what would hap­
pen is that people would be required to move their build­
ings off some of the front of the lake front lease to a lease 
behind that'1 Is that what you think is interpreted by an 
updating'? 

Also. Mr. Commissioner. would a classification for 
a subdivision be. would you feel that calling it a non­
conforming type of subdivision. would that be an ex­
ceptable classification for a s ubdivision and in fact then 
could the existence of those leases be held? 

Mr. Commissioner: Well. Mr. Speaker, with re­
spect I think that the questions related by the Honoura­
ble Member are de tailed examples of what the Honour­
able Member on my right was seeking clarification for 
a s well. I have your permission. Mr. Speaker, to seek 
some further tnformation on this and I would be pleased 
to do so. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Klua ne? 

Question re : Other Areas for Recreational Land 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, further s upplementary 
to the Commissioner regarding the plans that the Fed­
eral Land People have, do they have any plans for open­
ing up subdivis ions for recreational land lease in other 
areas other than the Marsh Lake-Tagish area? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker , I would have to 
bring definitive answers back to that. There have been 
plans from time to time, Mr. Speaker, but whether these 
are in the process of imminent implementation or not I 
can' t say. I would be pleased to get that information. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions? We 
will then proceed to Motions. 

MOTIONS 

Motion Number 2.1 

Mr. Speaker: We have on the Order Paper Motion 
number 23. I have given consideration to Motion 
number 23 and I find that it is in some conflict with a 
motion already concurred to by the House, namely Mo­
tion number 3, and in general content they are one and 
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the same. And of course, a motion or amendment cannot 
be brought forward which is the same in substance as a 
ques tion which has already been decided by the House, 
because a proposition once being submitted and carried 
in the affirmative or negative cannot be questioned 
again but must stand as the judgment of the House, 
more particularly at the Session, assembled. 

Motion number 23 would appear to the Chair to be in 
conflict with Motion number 3 as carried by the House 
and I would accordingly unfortunately have to ruleitout 
of order. 

May we now proceed to Public Bills. 

PUBLIC BILLS 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

BILL NUMBER 16- FIRST READING 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec­
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill number 16 be now read a first time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that 
Bill number 16 be now read a first time. Are you pre­
pared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car­
ried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for the 
second time? 

BILL NUMBER 16 -SECOND READING 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Now, Mr. Speaker ; I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill number 16 entitled An Ordinance to 
Amend the Community Assistance Ordinance be now 
read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that 
Bill number 16 be now read a second time. Are you 
prepared for the ques tion? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 



Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car­
ried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourabl e Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

BILL NUMBER 6 - THIRD READING 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon : Mr. Speaker. I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West. that 
Bill number 6 be now read a third time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that 
Bill number 6 be now read a third time. The Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, as this is the last 
opportunity we will have to speak on this Bill. I think I 
must again raise the objections I raised yes terday. In 
doing so, I am going to just merely say today that this is 
one of the most discriminatory pieces of legislation I 
have ever seen or heard of and, hopefully, some day we 
can prove this; I am sure that, in at least the next 
session , if it is at all possible, there will be some 
amendments brought forth for this Bill to make it possi­
bly worthwhile. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I must again take the 
opportunity to voice my objections to this Bill . I find it 
most unfortunate that the type of homeowner assis­
tance that is being offered in the Bill and the taxation 
imposed to help pay for the program make it impossible 
for me to support the Bill. I realize full well , as every 
member in this House, that many people in the territory 
will be assisted through this Bill, but I think the Honour­
able Member from Hootalinqua and other members in 
this House share the thought with me that the assis­
tance, under this homeowner grant, is not equitably 
distributed amongst the homeowners. 

The assistance is giving- the maximum assistance 
is being given to the people who have the greatest in­
vestment, and I think we feel that the people who have 
the greatest investment also have the capability and the 
abil ity to pay for that investment. I would have liked to 
have seen different homeowner grants that would have 
taken into consideration other people within the territ­
ory who require assistance to pay for the taxation that is 
levied regarding the shelter that they are occupying. 
This, again, takes into consideration the people who are 
renting either private homes or are renting apartments, 
and many of these people do require assistance also. 

I have to remark again, the taxation that is being 
imposed on property outside of the municipal ity and 
regardless what the members say that these do not go 
hand-in-hand, they do go hand-in-hand and , as every 
member that stood up yesterday said , they didn't want 
to have a conflict of rural and urban within the territory. 

Mr. Speaker. nothm~ has brought th i~ to tlw fore more 
than these two pieces of legislation. 

Mr. Speaker , the feelings in the rural areas are ver~ 
bitter and very deep and will take a long time to O\er­
come. Whether the mtent10n of the government. and 1 
would hope it was n0t the intenti0n of this government. 
to inflict upon the rural people extra taxations. specifi 
cally because. as statements were said here . they are 
not paying enough. I have stood u p tune after time dur­
ing this deba te and said ten mtl ls. what for ·! If you look 
a t some of the rural areas. vou would understand why I 
say what fot .. I don·t think· they expect - because they 
are very isolated and they have a small population - I 
don' t think they expect. nor want. enriched mumctpal 
services but. Mr. Speaker when they don't have munic­
ipal services. when they are negligible and someone 
says they are not paying enough. that go\·ernment must 
be prepared to define why they are not paying enough 
and what for will they be paying the ten mills This has 
come out ir. our discussions regarding the L. I.O.s when I 
tried to get a definition from the government. what are 
municipal services. Let's identify them . When ~ou say 
you are not paymg enough. you are being funded liber­
ally. 

I would like to know just what should we be paying 
for , in your estimation. and il ts leaving a big question in 
the minds of a lot of people. 

Again, I must express the view that the business 
community in the outlying areas who are having one 
tough time are going to be bearing the brunt of this. It 
may be insignificant to you that the revenue from them 
with the ten mills may be just ten or twenty thousand. 
but that ten or twenty thousand is as a result of their 
blood , sweat and tears. I don't think we can just unilat­
erally say, fine, they are not paying enough. That's why 
I am not supportmg the homeowner grant. I find it very 
difficult because I do real ize that many of the people in 
the municipalities are bearing a heavy burden for prop­
erty taxes. I would have been very happy to support the 
program of assistance to home owners. even if it would 
only have applied to home owners in municipalities, if 
you had not gone for the unilateral, heavy-handed type 
of taxation on the rural areas. Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? The 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, I did not have an oppor­
tunity to speak on this Bill while it was before Commit­
tee, but I would like to have the opportunity to speak on 
it now because I do favour the BJII. I think there are 
things that have been stated that have not been brought 
forth forcefully enough and that require reiteration. 
And I think one of the~e things is facing us today in a 
piece of paper that is lymg before us. called the Hamlet 
Allowance. I would like this read, Mr Speaker. 

The Hamlet Allowance is a schedule to reduce the 
assessment of real properties on a percentage scale 
with Whitehorse as the base. The assessment of com­
parable buildings are reduced by a percentage in each 
of the communities. The Government recognized the 
need for such an adjustment due to the lack of 
amenities. recreation, social, shopping and other 
facilities that are normally found in a fully-serviced 
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tl1'ban communu , I 01 illustr a tion-- for illustration 
purpos0s. if the bu id ing. no t land . in the City of 
Whitchor"r wa.., assessed for $50.000.00 and this very 
~ame bu1lding .. ·a" loc<Jted in II<· .h nction, the as-
spssmenl on thL buildmg would be 1 .:d by 18r;- . A 
f0w examples of the percentage decrease from the 
Whitehorse base is as follows: f'aro. 28 1 , : Teslin,19"(: 
Beaver Creek . 40~'i: Haines Junction, 18',; Carmacks, 
2ti',: Dawson. 35rc-: Clmton Creek. 4QI;.. Destruction 
Bav. 35ri: Old Crow. 60r;. : Pelly Crossing, 40' ( ; Ross 
Hiver.401 ,: Stewart Crossing . 351 1. Watson Lake,l7~'(; 
i\layo, 27r;.: Keno, 35r;.: Carcro~s . 12( r 

Mr. Speaker. under these circumstances I can 
hardly feel that the Mernb1•rs who are from Whitehorse 
are trying to act tn the d1scriminary mannt:r :~ga inst the 
communities outside of Whitehorse. 

:\tr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, just a few words 
before question is called on the third reading of the Bill 
for the Home Owners· Grant. Mr. Speaker, if I thought 
that the program of home owners grant and increased 
mill rights outside of municipalities would spl it the 
Yukon, in perpetuity in an urban versus rural type of 
situation, I would have no qualms , Mr. Speaker, in try­
ing to urge the Government to remove these pieces of 
legislation from the statutes books or introducing them 
to the statutes books. We just can't aff'ord that type of 
animosity or that type of split when we're trying to 
struggle towards a responsible Government situation in 
the Yukon Territory. Any hme, Mr. Speaker, taxation is 
increased upon the people, whether it comes from the 
Federal level, whether it comes from the Territorial 
level, or from the Municipal level, there is always and 
inevitably, and well there should be, a cry from the 
people who a re having a further imposition placed upon 
them by taxation. And I don't know of one in the history 
of democratic government when any type of a mill right 
or new taxation is introduced or imposed that that type 
of opposition to a government tax measure doesn ' t 
come in. That's the normal , healthy, democratic flow of 
events and one that a government must accept because 
it is always not a decision, when you make or impose 
more taxes upon the people, it is not a decision that is 
taken lightly. and of course it is never an easy decision 
and it is never one that is accepted by the group of 
people that are having the taxes put on them. 

The Honourable Member from Hootalinqua says 
that it is a discriminatory piece of legislation. I agree 
with the Honourable Member from Hootalinqua. It is a 
discriminatory piece of legislation. It discriminates for 
a group of people who, in my estimation, have too long 
been ignored by all governments, whether they be Fed­
eral, Territorial or Municipal. I say, Mr. Speaker, that 
through this Bill we are not even doing enough for that 
people ; it's a start that we recognize that there is a 
group of people who do pay their way , who do have 
problems meeting mortgage payments and raising a 
family. We say that now is a time for government to 
recognize this fact and start programs that discrimi­
nate in favour for this group of people who has too long 
been ignored by governments at all levels. 
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I also agree with the Honourable Member from 
Kluane that it would be nice, if we had the pot of money, 
if we could use the Home Owners Grant as a vehicle to 
g ive some respite to tenants and also to renters in 
apartments. 

I believe , Mr. Speaker, that if you look through 
some of the Provincial legislation that programs such of 
this type have been expanded to take that target group 
into consideration also, as the money is available . 

Mr. Speaker, there 's never been a piece of legisla­
tion, I don ' t think , that has been involved or brought 
forward by the Territorial Government, whether there 
was a different Executive Committee or this present 
Executive Committee, that wasn't a living ordinance. If 
we find that that Ordinance is not workable, we think 
that we've done our homework properly on this home 
owner grant. I think members can see that we did a lot of 
work to try to come up with a program that we thought 
was going to get to the target group that we thcught 
needed help a t this time. If there are monies available 
and we can expand the program or, if some Honourable 
Members are correct, it just doesn't work out, then I 
don't think there would be any problems at all in finding 
a different vehicle or amending the vehicle or expand­
ing the vehicle. 

Mr. Speaker, I think that it' s been a good debate. I 
hope and I really believe this, and if I didn't, as I say, I 
would be urging the government to withdraw the legis­
lation so that there is no permanent animosities or splits 
between rural and urban members. I think it's the nor­
mal reaction to taxation imposed upon a certain seg­
ment of the population, and you're going to hear the 
very same outcry from the people in the municipalities 
when the municipal mill rates go up in the near future. 
In fac t, I think Dawson's just went some three or four 
mills this year. And I'm sure we haven' t heard the end of 
municipal mill rates rising in the future in the Yukon 
Territory. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? Pre­
pared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr_ Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mrs. Watson: Disagreed. 

Mr. Speaker: Division has been called. Madam 
Clerk would you poll the House? 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Agreed. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Mayo? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Disagree. 



Madam Clerk: The Honoura ble Member from 
Klondike? 

Mr. Berger: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Mr. Fleming: Disagree . 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs. wwatson: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Ogilvie? 

Ms. Millard: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River? 

Mr. McCall: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: Mr. Speaker , the vote is6yae, 5nay. 

Mr. Speaker: I must declare that the motion is car-
ried . · 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to 
the Bill? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec­
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West , that Bill number 6 do now pass and that the title be 
as on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West , tha t 
Bill number 6 do now pass and the title be as on the 
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Order Paper . Are you prepared for the question'? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed'' 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car­
ried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure·> 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Speaker. I would now move that 
Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House re­
solve into Committee of the Whole for the purpose of 
considering Bills. Sessional Papers and Motions. 

Mr. Lengerke: I second that. 

Mr. Speaker : It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable 
Members from Whitehorse Riverdale. that Mr. Speaker 
do now leave the Chair and the House resolve into 
Committee of the Whole for the purpose of discussing 
Bills, Sessional Papers and Motions. Are you prepared 
for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker : I shall declare the motion is carried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Speaker leaves the Chair 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order 
and declare a brief recess. 

(RECESS) 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
We are at present in the second reading of Schedule A of 
Bill number 2, Vote number 7, and on the floor of com­
mittee is at present the motion that I will now read. It 
was moved by the Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, 
seconded by the Member from Pelly: it is the opinion of 
this Assembly that the Takhini Library Association or 
supporting appropriate organization be provided with 
an operating grant of $3,400.00, subject to the 
Association's providing to the Yukon Territorial Gov­
ernment a comprehensive and operating budget cou­
pled with the Association's commitment to provide the 
balance of funds required to operate the library to its 
present standards and level of service. Mr. Lengerke? 
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:vtr. Lengerke: Mr . Chair ma n. with t hat difficulty I 
think I should withdraw the motion and I think that is 
exactly what ! am going to do. I have the consent of the 
seconder : we will withdraw the motion because I just 
want to say that I have spoken to :vir. Gillespie. I have 
d1scussed with members of the Associalion. the Library 
Association. the s ituation . They are awaiting at this 
mome nt a reply from the Minis ter of Educa t ion. who' s 
responsibl e for the Yukon Tourist Advisory Commi ttee 
of- Sports Advisory. I a m sorry-- who have reviewed an 
application from the Association. so they are awaiting 
the :Vtinister ·s official repl y. I think t ha t the assurance 
that I was given by Mr . Gillespie just leaves it with us 
tha t something will be done for the library. I am sure. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McCall. are you in agreement'? 

:vtr. McCall: Yes. Mr. Chairman . 

!VIr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson ? 

:vtrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. you know I am not 
quite satisfied with that. No. I am not. I have some very 
basic reasons for this. Now. the government came for­
ward and said that they are not going to fund a branch 
I ibrary in the Takhini area. Now. Mr. Gillespie has said 
tha t he is going to be speaking and working with the 
Takhini a rea. Well. that's just fine. I can bring you a 
couple of instances where I was asked last weekend how 
are our chances of getting some money to assist us in 
es tablishing not just a book depository system but 
where we can have a little bit more meaningful library 
service in our community. 

I said. well . really we don't have a progr am within 
the government that defines th is. We have branch lib­
raries and we have book depository systems, but if we 
have something in-between I want to know about it be­
cause then. I think. I am going to ad vise my constituents 
to get with Mr. Gillespie. If that's a ll you have to do. 

Now , I am very, very serious about this and I am 
also serious about the recreational aspect of it. Fitness 
and Amateur Sport Advisory Committee , and I support 
the Fitness and Amateur Sport Advisory Committee in 
their press release, where they were a littl e upset when 
government people ad vised organizations to apply to 
them for grants. Where really government people 
should know the terms of reference on which that advis­
ory group are pe rmitted to g ive recreational a nd 
amateur and cultural grants. Under our structure of 
government in the territory recreation is a responsibil­
Ity of the municipality. Recreation and culture. 

Is this government say ing, then, you know, forget 
a bout it, overlook that part but give them a recreation 
grant so they can he! p pay for the cost of the library, and 
I don 't think this is right. I mean, if we are going to 
change the rules, fine, but let's change the rules for 
everyone, and I am going to keep-- and not that I am 
opposing Takhini's library. What I am opposing is , look, 
if we are going to have a one shot type of thing, well 
maybe the one shot type of thing can apply to another 
community. 

If this is the attitude and this is how. we want to run 
this grant structure, fine, but you can rest assured this 
community is going to be getting with Mr. Gillespie too. 
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So. you had be better looking for a littl e bit more money 
than what it is going to cost to keep the Takhini Library 
alive. I think we have to consider this . 

:vtr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

:vtr. Lengerke : Mr . Chairman. I think I had better 
clarify one thing in respect to what the Honourable 
Member from Kluane says. Mr. Gillespie's comments 
really were. the assurance that he gave was the assur­
ance that further consideration. and that's the only as­
surance. further consideration would be given, depend­
ing on the Association's s ubmission in which I would 
hope they would sta te what they are going to do and 
what the as pirations of that Association are. I think that 
is the only assurance. I don 't think there is any guaran­
tee involved in this and certainly. as I say. we are wait­
ing a reply from the Minis ter. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : Yes. Mr. Chairman. fur ther to 
the remarks of the Honourable Member from Kluane. I 
can understand her concern. but I would like to point out 
that. under the Commi ssioner 's Order number 
19751 100! which governs Fitness and Amateur Sport 
Ordinance and lays down the conditions for recreational 
grants. under the sub-heading Programs, Activities and 
Special Projects Number 15 assistance may be granted 
for ( e l cultural activities to assist recognized organiza­
tions in the performing of fine arts or other cultural . 
creative or intellectua l field s of activity. 

Now. I submit , Mr. Chairman. that the Takhini Re­
creation Centre and its Board are a recognized organi­
zation and when they approach the Recreation Commit­
tee for a grant they were approaching it on the basis that 
they were going to be performing a ser vice in an intel­
lectual field of activity and I would have assumed that 
approach was a legitimate one and I would have ex­
pected their submission to be given serious considera­
tion on those grounds . 

I cannot accept the fact that they would not be eligi­
ble for such a grant. On that understanding they were 
advised to approach the Recreation Committee and that 
was the reason for the advice being given to them. It was 
not a dumping of responsibilities from one government 
department to another. It was a rna tter of knowing that 
fund s were available in one department where they 
were not available in another . And so it was felt that the 
advice was valid at the time and that approach was 
made. 

The Honourable Member can certainly consult that 
Section under the Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. I might add that the Fitness 
and Amateur Sports Counc il was approached, had a 
meeting on the weekend . and did not agree that they 
were eligible. I cannot give their reasons; if you wish. I 
can get in touch with their president and ask him to 
bring them a long for us . 

Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. in regards to a for­
mal letter from myself to the Takhini LibraryOrganiza-



lion. I have not received the recommendations vet from 
the Advisorv Board which. I believe. the Honourable 
Member asked for in the House the other dav and I'm 
looking forward to getting them here later 'on today. 
horefully . 

The other thing is that once I get the brief that was 
presented by the Library Association to thr Advisory 
P.oard . then I will look at it accordingly. But it's in :vir. 
Gillespie's hands. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: :vir. Chairman. I' m rather amazed at 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West's in­
terpretation of that legislation. I think there certainly 
should be a clarification for government people on what 
grants are available for what and where. 

Now, the cui tural activities have to be. in order to 
ask for funding from the Fitness and Amateur Sports. 
they have to be a cultural group with a Yukon base. I'm 
thinking about the Arts Council who operate in the 
Yukon as a whole. not just in the Whitehorse area. 

Now. when you're thinking of the library as a cul­
tural group, fine. but the Territorial Government is as­
suming library services. And there is no way that that 
can be taken, interpreted. so that these people have a 
right or are eligible for grants from that Fitness. from 
that group, at all . 

The same thing with the City of Whitehorse; I can 
understand that with the City of Whitehorse turning 
them down. If you had library services, if you had a 
Yukon organization that was promoting library ser­
vices. an enrichment of library services, they in their 
stead could apply to the Board but not just one group. 
And library services is a service of the Territorial Gov­
ernment. 

I would certainly advise the Minister of Education 
to make sure that there is some clarification on who is 
eligible for these grants. And if my interpretation is 
wrong, I'd certainly like to know about it because, if my 
interpretation is wrong, again I can advise various or­
ganizations who I have said no , you don't qualify under 
this. Then I'm going to have to change my stand and 
they're going to have to , they'll be able to submit appl i­
cations for assistance too. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Well, Mr. Chairman, I think the 
Honourable Member knows what she just said is true. 
There has to be a Yukon Society, there's criteria set 
down by the Advisory Board. But as far as the Takhini 
Library is concerned, I appreciate what the Honourable 
Member has said in reference to the Takhini Library 
and launching into a new program and we're going to 
have to look at it in that light. · 

Mr. Chairman, I will clarify that once again. We'll 
look into the light of the Takhini Library in context with 
the rest of the Yukon, whether or not we can carry it on, 
whether or not the library services could carry it on in 
the budget that they have. We 're going to have to look at 
all these other variables. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

l'age ~~~~ 

:vlr. Fleming: Yes. in response to that. :\1r. Chair· 
man. I would say that you take a good look at the Takh1n1 
Library and then take a good look at all of the rest or the 
libraries and how far thev are out and what it cost. And 
then just wonder really JS there a necessant~· lor 
a not her l ibrarv within three or four miles ol the ont• vou 
got downtown ·here. · 

Hon. :vtr. Lang: This is going to be taken into ac­
count. 

:vlr. Chairman: :\Irs. Watson·! 

Mrs. Watson: \1r. Chairman. if you are going to be 
funding the Takhini Library I submit it should be an A 
29; that it should be defined as a branch I ibrarv or 
whatever you have. but let's get it in A 29 and next year 
the details on how the Takhini Library is being funded 
are made available. the terms of reference for this type 
of assistance so that the people of Teslin can apply and 
people of Carcross or whoever else wants to. 

Mr. Chairman: Clear'? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Department of Legal Affairs 
$2.303,704.00. 

Department of Hi ghways and Public Works 
$14.490.589.00. Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Yukon Housing Corporation 
$2.039,531.00. Clear? Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Ijusthaveto speakona pointthat has 
been raised. I asked the question the other day about the 
seven houses at Destruction Bay and I was informed 
then that the people were not interested in acquiring 
their own homes. I was in touch with these people and 
that isn't-- that wasn't their reaction whatsoever. It's 
become a little more involved because the avail ability 
of land is a question but they certainly haven'tcut them­
selves out of not wanting to build their own homes or buy 
homes that the Yukon Housing Corporation would con­
struct. I think this is a concern that was expressed by 
the Honourable Member from Mayo, the Honourable 
Member from Dawson City, from Hootalinqua, from 
Watson Lake, is that the Yukon Housing Corporation's 
houses that they build, are they building them to a stan­
dard that people want to buy them? I think this is their 
biggest concern. 

I think the Housing Corporation presently is looking 
at being in the double-wides and setting them up on 
pavement. This particular group of people I think would 
consider purchasing these houses but are very, very 
concerned about the construction, the insulation and 
this type of thing, because they know, once they buy 
them. they have to maintain them and pay the electricc:tl 
and the fuel costs. This is the big thing that is giving 
great concern to people who are thinking of buying 
houses and also who will be moving into government 
houses and they will be responsible for their own light 
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and fuel bills. 
I am sure that every \!ember here. who has people 

111 their area who are living 1n go\'ernment housing 
where they have to pay the fuel bill. is concerned about 
this thing. They don't want sub-standard construction. 
They want to make sure that they are going to be mov­
ing into well built. well msulated housing. 

I wonder if the witness could give us some assur­
ance of special attention that the !lousing Corporation 
could be paying to th1s need and some. to looking at 
wavs that they could overcome some of the deficiencies 
that have been evident in our building program. Let's 
face it. that certainly we can learn from doing and we 
have been doing it for three years now. 

Vir. :\'Iiller: Mr. Chairman. if the intention of De­
struction Bay is that these people want to build their 
own houses and land is the problem. surely we can find 
land for seven government houses: if three of them say 
they don't want government houses. they will build their 
own. I think we could probably sell them that land . 

Now. with respect to building construction stan­
dards. These are all built to Northern Building stan­
dards. I don't know what further assurance I can give 
you. We are talking double-wides. They are full y insu­
lated to northern standards. not southern standards. 
They are three-and-a-half inches in the wall. six inches 
in the ceiling. with insulation. I. you know. l can't give 
you any more assurance than the Housing Corporation 
builds houses to the best of the ability that they have. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Yes. Mr. Chairman , perhaps I could 
advise the witness that one of the problems with the 
housing that has been constructed in the past is that 
there has been no on-site inspector. They get occasional 
visits from inspectors from Whitehorse to do various 
things. Sometimes the inspectors have gone down on 
complaints that had been reported to the territorial 
government. but basically the problem with a lot of it is 
that there is just no-one on site to ensure that the con­
tractors are complying with the Northern Building 
Code. I think this is well illustrated by some of the de­
fects in the housing in Mayo where pipes froze up this 
winter simply because the insulation hasn't been put in 
place. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, we're back to the old 
story again, of how often do you have to check a so called 
qualified contractor, if they 're not qualified, and a lot of 
these are Yukon contractors, Mr. Chairman, I you 
know, you can stand over them with a whip, but it costs 
money to do so. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Berger. go ahead. 

Mr. Berger: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The thing is 
I have to agree with the Honourable Member from 
Kluane. on the figures the witness gave to us, I thmk 
clarifies this. The cost of repairs in Dawson of the hous­
ing units there, are out of this world. Up to date and that 
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another $80.000.00 is appropriated for the repair of the 
housmg again. This is what my concern is. that this type 
of housing cannot sell to anybody . You cannot use. for 
staff housing and expect people to buy junk like this. 
because they cannot keep up the maintenance cost on 
those things. And this is a concern that I think the Hon­
ourable Member of Kluane and from Mavo that those 
build ings were maybe bui lt to a certain standard in the 
National Builcl ing code but they're not considering the 
weather conditions. the ground conditions. in the areas. 
The National B11ilding Code. in lots of instances does not 
consider the permafrost conditions which is different in 
every communi ty in the Territory . Those are the things 
I think we need. a close inspection. an on si te inspection 
on the site of construction. just about every day. 

Vir. Chai rman: Clear? Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. would it be better if 
there was a recommendation from this House that ther e 
be as a part of the cost of each project built into it. on si te 
inspection constantly. I think that most of the members 
here would be prepared to consider that. have one less 
house built in the building season, but to make sure that 
in every project there's an on site inspector, who never 
leaves the place. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, I would hate to give in to 
that si tuation. I think you're going to have to trust the 
administration to do the best we can with this. because 
you do end up in situations where you can't physically 
get a project inspector, and what do you do, close the job 
down until you get one? The other consider ation that 
you have to keep in mind , is the fact that just because 
you've got a project inspector, doesn't mean that you're 
going to get any better a job, even if you don't have one. 
It depends upon the quality the inspector, the quality of 
the contractor. and a lot of other factors . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr . Chairman, I would like to clear 
something up to, I would not like to leave a doubt in 
peoples mind that I 'm blaming the Territorial Ad­
ministration and the Terri torial I nspecting Survey . 
service of failing on the job. In most, in the majority of 
instances, Dawson was not the Territorial Government. 
who was supposed to look after the inspection service. 
was CMHC that was supposed to look after it from Van­
couver or Prince George, but I know in fact this inspec­
tor did not show up on the job until the house was 
finished. I do not aant to blame the Territorial Inspec­
tion Service on this. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, I can only repeat again , 
CMHC sometimes has problems getting inspectors too, 
so you know, it's an endless cycle and we do the best job 
we can. The Housing Corporation is improving the qual­
ity of the houses that they're building. and certainly we 
have problems, you're going to have problems in every 
major construction project. I can show them to you here 
in town where private contractors are building. Gov­
ernment is not unique in this area. 



Mr. Chairman: Clear"? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Project Capital. $11.251.500.00. 
Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Loan Capital. $5.273,000.00. Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Loan amortization $1.043.900.00. 
Total, $71,694.908.00. Whereas it appears by message 
from James Smith Esquire. Commissioner of the Yukon 
Territory and in the estimates accompanying the same 
that the sums here and after mentioned in Schedule A of 
this Ordinance are required to defray certain expenses 
of the Public Service of the Yukon Territory and for the 
purpose relating thereto, for the 12 months ending the 
31st day of March, 1977. First Appropriation Ordinance, 
1976-77. I will entertain a motion. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I would move 
Bill Number 2 out of Committee without amendment. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: ll'll second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McKin­
non, seconded by Mr. Lang, that Bill Number 2 be 
moved out of committee without amendment. Are you 
ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Motion is carried . 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Chairman: We will deal with consideration of 
Bill Number 3. 

BILL NUMBER 3 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. for the record I want 
my disagreement recorded on the record. 

Mr. Chairman: Very well, Mrs. Watson. 

Mr. Lengerke: ~r. Chairman. I would like to ask 
the witness a quest JOn with respect to the prepar ation of 
the budget. It is just a very general question, and I just 
thought it might be a opportune time to get that. Mr 
:\tiller. I don't know what the policy of the Territorial 
G·overnment has been in the past, or what 1! is going to 
be in the future, but I would like to know if you have 
considered, in preparing a budget for the consideration 
of the Assembly and for consideration of all your de­
partment heads. that you do it by objective and prog-
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rams. In other words. you split this out and you show in 
greater detail what you are going to accomplish each 
year. and the dollars involved. rather than just a page 
thatsays$1.745.653. Yukon Health Ins urance Plan Zip.! 
think something that a lot of municipalities. a lot ol 
governments. a lot of pnvate enterprise are now looking 
to. and I know that you're the. certainly the budgetary 
expert in this. and I am just looking for un answer and 
your opinion. but I personally think that it would be a 
very good exercise in the futue. if indE-ed this govern· 
ment undertook to ::lo that kind of budget. 

Mr. Miller: :V1r. Chairman. I have worked under 
many budget systems. both within government and the 
industry. I find it very difficult in government to think 
that you can do things by objectives or goals. The Fed· 
eral Government. for example. introduced the North· 
ern National Objectives and they have been the curse of 
the North ever since they were announced. because it is 
an excuse for every Federal Department to do any 
damn thing they like. any time. That's how they are 
used. In industry goals and objectives were great. be· 
cause if you don't conform you are out of the door. In 
government it doesn't work quite that simply. 

So. while goals and objectives are a nice thing to 
have. and everybody s hould have them. you must be 
very careful not to use them as the panacea. if you like. 
of running the operation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I don't want to get into debate at all 
with the witness , but I just. I think that he misunders· 
tood the objectives and the programs that I have in mind 
are not the national aspirations or national concern. I 
think they are more of a detailed situation with respect 
to the goals, if you like , that you have already displayed 
within this budget. But, I am saying that I would suggest 
that this could be broken down where you could break 
the, as I said, the $850,000.00 down into further segments 
which would show, clearly, that you, what you are going 
to do, and when you are going to do it. As I say, I don't 
think there is too much difficulty in that, regardless of 
what your opinion may be, Mr. Miller, but however. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, certainly we can expand 
this budget to include that type of information. I can 
recall when I came to this government our budget book 
was something like four inches thick on ten by fourteen 
paper, and it used to take anywhere up to s ix weeks to 
get the thing through because everybody questioned 
every line. 

You have to reach a pomt, at some t1me where, and 
we shrunk it back, it went back a long way further than 
what's here now We are now adding to it a~>ain. This 
will gradually be brought into a more meaningful doc· 
ket. I think. primarily, as you get more elected rep· 
resentation in the Executive Committee. you will find 
that this type of informatiOn will come and go depending 
upon the group that IS in the Executive Committee 
From an administrative standpoint. we arc expanding 
it. We are trying to get you more information and we will 
continue to do that. 
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\llr. Chairman: :\Irs. Watson '? 

:Yirs. Watson: :\lr. Chairman. would it be possible to 
even cons1der tak ing one depart ·nt or two depart­
ments and goiug into the progra m. !Jl ,Jg your prog­
rams within your department. and associa ting your 
programs with the costs. and then a person would be 
able to ask for an evaluation of the program. because I 
think tha t too often governments. you are spending 
money and governments continue because it was done 
the last year. You had the program last year . Is time 
ever taken to evaluate the program and all the informa­
tion compiled so that you can make a just evaluation. 

I thmk that this government 1S going to have to 
really be looking a t this ty pe of thing more, budgeting by 
program. or giving more progra m mformation, be­
cause it could well be that they will be coming forward 
to try to cut some of the programs . I am s ure that the 
program has to be defined before you can really try to 
cut the program. and al so give your information on the 
evaluation of the program. Why it was chosen to be cut. 
You know, I think tha t some of this deta il would cer­
ta inl y be most helpful . I can realize we, it takes a great 
deal of time to prepare a budget and give all the detail. 
It's taken us long enough now. this would have been 
twice as thick, we would have been here ' til after the 
Arctic Winter Games, I am sure. We wouldn ' t want to do 
that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Perhaps it 
would be a good idea for the Executive Committee to 
take a look at the proposition that evolved in some other 
governments of taking one department, each year, with 
a detailed budget so that that department, could get a 
close-up scrutiny of it's expenditures but not all de­
partments. Just one department of government, be­
cause I am sure that with some of the information we've 
received from some of the witnesses , we certainly 
would like to scrutinize how some of the money is being 
spent. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman I guess we all get 
our two bits worth here on this one. As most of the 
members know thts was my first budget experience as a 
member of the E xecutive Committee and it was a reve­
lation to me, because I have always operated as a pri­
vate citizen where you assess the amount of money 
available and then you go out and buy what you can 
afford to buy. 

In government, you look at statutory requirements 
for services you must provide. and programs which you 
feel are beneficial to everyone in the Yukon, which you 
want to prov1de. You add up how much that comes to 
and then you try to find the money to pay for it. ~ow, in 
this particular budget. I would like to tell all members 
that there was a great deal of soul searching and heart 
rendering planing went on for some months. And after 
the final figures had been assembled and approved in 
the Fmancial Adv1sory Committee, we still went back 
and carved out close to another million dollars from 
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programs and services that we wanted in the Yukon. 
And that's not fun. 

There are a lot of things there that everybody 
around this table would have liked to been able to afford, 
I assure you, as did the ExCom Members. 

Then we brought the package to this Council for 
approval and it was not a matter of any light decision, 
believe me . If you are talking about including your goals 
and objectives in the budget, I think most of that is 
pretty apparent. In my own department, I think it's 
been self-explanatory, all through this Session what our 
objectives are in Welfare and Health Services andRe­
habilitation. And because it's people department, all 
our programs deal with the needs and services that we 
have to consider, applying to individual Yukoners. 

It is a completely different approach in this de­
partment from the one that you would take in Public 
Works , or in Education or in Local Government. The 
Honourable Member from Mayo has a very interesting 
suggestion there. If he wants to take further action on 
that I think the House might support him. I don't know 
how much longer you're going to take to get through the 
budget session. No, I didn't mean this Session . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman , in conclusion I would 
hope I asked the question, I'm not, didn' t raise the ques­
tion with respect to budgeting by objective and prog­
raming to be critical by any means. I am not being 
critical of this budget. I would think that this budget is a 
very , very realistic budget, is a very responsible 
budget, that's indicative by the fact that we didn't make 
any amendments to this budget. 

I think, you know, all I was suggesting and I'm 
suggesting it for, I would say, betterment of what might 
come. It's a very simple thing to put together a budget 
by program and objective and as I wanted to point out, 
and maybe I'm not explaining myself clearly enough.lt 
is not tied to the national objectives or the Yukon goals 
in the future in the broadest sense. It's something that 
deals with the every day programs and it does specify 
very simply, what is going to be done, how it's going to 
be done. It probably would eliminate such thing as a 
appendix because it could well be incorporated into 
probably one or two more pages. 

This is all as I say I didn' t stand up here to be 
critical , I was asking a question of Mr. Miller . I sug­
gested that there is another way and I'm sure that he 
knows. He knows better than I and maybe some day it 
will be incorpora ted. Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: Before proceeding with clause by 
clause of Bill Number 3, arrangements have been made 
with Comittee's concurrence to proceed this afternoon 
with the clause by clause reading of Bill Number 8 at 
which time the Public Service Allia nce would like to 
appear as witnesses Do I have Committee's permission 
for these arrangements'? That would then be at 1:30 . 

We will now proceed with Bill Number 3. 
One, One. 

1 Reads Clause I 11)) 

Mr. Chairman: Two, one. 



1 Reads Clause 2 (Ill 

Mr. Chairman Three, one. 
(Reads Clause 3 (Ill 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson ? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, three, one 1 a l Iii l th1s 
is thirty percent of the income tax that is paid by Yukon 
residents. Is this thirty percent of the income tax that 
was paid in 1973 fiscal year or '74 or '75? It would be '74. 
would it not Mr -the witness: 

Mr. Miller: No, Mr. Chairman, this is an estimate 
and the amount of income tax that will be paid in 1976. 
it's purely and simply an estimate, and represents 
thirty percent of the estimated personal income tax that 
will be paid in the Territory, ten percent of the corpora­
tion income tax. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, when does the esti­
mate become a reality? When at what time is the ad­
justment made, how many years does that take? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, the personal income tax 
is two years, the actual figures are available two years 
after the tax year. Corporation income tax is available 
three years after the tax year. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes this question maybe a little bit 
unassociated, Mr. Chairman, but it's dealing with in­
come tax and I'm going to ask with respect to the Home 
Owner Grant. How is the Home Owner Grant affected 
by income tax, do you have to pay tax on that? I think I 
know the answer but I'd like that clarified Mr. Miller for 
a lot of people that have asked this question. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, theere is no connection 
between a home owner grant payable by this govern­
ment and income tax, no connection at all. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, to the individual. 

Mr. Chairman: Order please. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, there is no connection 
between the home owner grant paid to the individual by 
the government and the income tax that has to be filed 
by that individual. It is not considered income. 

Mr. Chairman: Four, one. 

(Reads Clause 4 l 

Mr. Chairman: Five, one. 

(Reads Clause 5) 

Mr. Chairman: Six, one. 

(Reads Clause 6) 

Mr. Chairman: Seven, one. 

l'a~e:'lli2 

1 Reads Clause 71 

:\1r. Chairman· Eight. t)ne. 

1 Reads Cl<tU~r· 81 

:\1r. Chair 11an: Nir.e. one 

1 Reads Clause 91 

Mr. Chairman: !'en. o:1e 

f Rem:s Clause 10 1 

Mr. Chairman: Eleven. one. :\1rs. Watson'' 

Mrs. Watson: :\1r. Chairman. I would like-- I should 
know this, but I just want sornf' clarification again. The 
operating grant in 3( 1 Hi l. that is what we normally call 
our deficit grant. We are not paying amortizatiOn pay­
ments on the half of that deficit g.·ant at this time. are 
we? 

Mr. Miller: No. Mr. Chairman. this is a grant. <111 
outright grant, to the Territorial Government: there is 
no interest payable on it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson·> 

Mrs. Watson: Mr Chairman, is the Federal Gov­
ernment keeping an accounting of the deficit grants that 
are being provided to the Yukon Territory so that some 
day they may becoming to us to say. well, this is going to 
affect the operation of the Yukon in the future when we. 
hopefully, gain the revenue from our resources. 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, I don't know what the 
Federal Government is doing, but I would suggest, once 
the Parliament of Canada votes the deficit grant re­
quirements of the Yukon, that for all intents and pur­
poses that is money spent, they have no vote authority 
under which to recover that money and no legislative 
authority presently under which to recover that money. 
So, for all intents and purposes, I think we can consider 
it to be finished once that they have voted the money. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, does the capital 
grant-- is it applied in the same way? 

Mr. Miller: No, Mr. Chairman. Up until two years 
ago, all of your capital funds came into us as loans, the 
Federal Government then gave us money with which to 
pay back those loans. As of two years ago, they now give 
us a capital grant. the old outstanding loans have not 
been paid off but they have suspended any payments of 
amortization of principal and interest for a five-year 
period ending in 1979, at which time, as we understand 
it, it would be their intention to write this amount of 
money off. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr Chairman, does it make any dif­
ference now that the capital has become an outright 
grant rather than a loan in the amount of capital funding 
that is available to us? 

( '\ 
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\lr. \1iller . \u. :\lr. Ch-:trman. \\C ('Ontmue to get 
tlw capltdl fund:-; that wr requirP ,111d : think thE' major 
cllflerence when this i~. lone is th<'t it"s cut out about 
tlm'e man-ve.1rs of labour on both, · rlP ;nd the fed­
er.ll s1de. If th.It's ,m mhantage I gt... ,, ·'got it. 

\Irs . Wat-;on: \1 r . Chairman. the Community Capi­
tal Assistance Program or the Community A. ~istance 
Program falls within th1s cap ital grant 

:\.1r. \Iil ler : Tht.h's correet :VIr. Ci1a1rman; there 's 
thrPe million dollars. 

:\Irs. Watson: :\'lr. Chairman , some of that capital is 
being used by the Government of the Territory for capi­
ta l lor public works. local improv!'ments; I was think­
ing ab0C~l frontage costs and the Government of the 
TPrritory is charging interest on the use of that capi tal, 
~· i ght ') 

!\.1r. Miller: 1\lo, 1\lr. Chairman. the Community As­
sistance Ordmance covers our portion of the cost, the 
local improvement portion of the cost we cover under 
third party loans. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, if I could ask another 
question. If you' re embarking upon a sewer and water 
project 111 the community of Whitehorse, then only a 
portion of that project is being funded out of the capital 
grant and the rest of it is amortized as a loan by the 
Territorial Government? 

Mr. Miller : That's correct, Mr. Chairman. Our por­
tion of the cos t. the forgiveable portion, i.e. 90"0 if you're 
talkingwater and sewer , the main facility, comes out of 
our Community Assistance and goes to the City as a 
grant, straight outright payment. The City would then 
borrow their s hare or charge it to their general purpose 
or their general revenue. But normally they would bor­
row their sha re to cover the frontage portion from us 
under a third party loan, which we pay interest on, they 
pay interes t on, it's handled as a normal business trans­
action. 

Mrs. Watson: One final question then, are Capital 
Assistance Program, or community assistance, is our 
agreement is that it's three million doll ars a year , out of 
the Capita l Grant, but actually it is virtually more than 
three million when you include the amount that we bor­
row and amortize particularly for the use within the 
territory? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, the original study that 
was done. and I can't quote the precise figures, but it 
was something in the neighbourhood of a total cost of 
$30,000.000.00, of which $21,000,000.00 was coming from 
the Terntorial Government under the Community As­
sistance Ordinance. The remaining $900.000.00 would be 
patd for by the users or the beneficiaries of that service , 
through either fundage tax or increased general pur­
pose mill rates. 

Mr. Watson: So that really the Community Assis­
tance is more than $3,000.000 00 a year? 
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:vtr. Miller: That's right. Mr. Chairman . 

Mr. Chairman: Eleven, one. 

1 Reads Clause 11( 11 -preamble! 

:\.1r. Chairman: Now I will entertain a motion . 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I would move Bill number 6 
out of Committee without amendment. 

Mr. McCall: I second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McKin­
non, seconded by Mr. McCall, that Bill number 3 be 
moved out of Committee without amendment. Are you 
ready for the question ? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed ? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Motion is carried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

BILL NUMBER 16 

Mr. Chairman: We have a very brief Bill, number 
16, perhaps we can continue with it before we recess? 
One. 

(Reads Clause 1) 

Mr. Chairman: Two . 

(Reads Clause 2 l 

Some Members: Clear. 

(Cha irman reads preamble) 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I could ask 
the Minister of Local Government regarding this 
amendment. I wonder if the Government has made a 
decision whether they will be amending the Community 
Assistance Ordinance to provide assistance for unor­
ganized areas for curling rinks, or whether you will 
assist them for grant. You said the other day that you 
would be considering it and I wondered when this Bill­
whether this was the amendment. I wonder whether the 
decision has been made at this time? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: No, Mr. Chairman, with the 
House in session it was impossible to be running Execu­
tive Committee Documentation to Executive Commit­
tee for those decisions. 

Mr. Chairman: Well, I entertain a motion. 



Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I move Bill 
number 16 out of Committee without amendment. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McKin­
non, seconded by Mr. Lang, that Bill number 16 be 
moved out of Committee without amendment. Are you 
ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Motion is carried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Chairman: We will recess until 13 :30 hours. 

(RECESS) 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order . I 
apologize for the delay. We were expecting some wit­
nesses; they will be here imminently. 

BILL NUMBER 8 

Mr. Chairman: In the meantime, we will begin with 
the clause-by-clause reading of Bill number 8. One, Part 
I. 

(Reads Clause 1, part I) 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the word should 
be 'interpretation' of the heading immediately under 
Part I ; it was a bit of a mistake. 

Mr. Chairman: Interpretation. Two. 

(Reads Clause 2) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman, it is intended that 
the-- by definition, a casual employee is not an emp­
loyee. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it's drafted 
in that way, in such a way that casual employees will be 
treated in a different manner, although for a couple of 
technical reasons they must be included as persons 
within this Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Part II - Management and Direc­
tion. Three. 

(Reads Clause 3) 

Mr. Chairman: Part III- Public Service Commis­
sion. Four. 

(Reads Clause 4) 

Page 564 

Mr. Chairman: l~1ve . 

(Reads Clause 51 

Mr. Chairman: Six. 

1 Reads Clause 61 

Mr. Berger: I'd like to go back to Part I here if l 
may, Mr. Chairman I'd like to ask Mr. Legal Advisor 
why wasn't the bargaining unit defined in Part l? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The bargaming unit is defined 
in Public Service Starr Relations Ordinance. And the 
section here says anything that is not defined in Section 
2 of this Bill automatically takes the meaning which it 
has under the existing Public Service Staff Relations 
Ordinance. So, bargaining unit carries the same mean­
ing throughout the two Ordinances. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I'd like to go to Section 5 of Part II I. the 
Public Service Commission shall consist of a Public 
Service Commissioner and such officers and employees 
as may be appointed to administer the provisions of this 
Ordinance. Could we have some further clarification on 
that? Where these officers and employees are going to 
come from? From within the Government or from the 
outside of the Government structure? 

Mr. Legal Advisor : Mr. Chairman. this Ordinance 
would apply to those people who are employees of the 
Commission. They will be public servants in the normal 
way. 

Mr. McCall: But at what level. Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The whole structural level 
below the Public Service Commissioner himself. His 
assistants, his branch heads and the staff of his depart­
ment. They will all come under that expression in Sec­
tion 5. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just for 
clarification: when the Commissioner establishes the, 
under Section 6, the appointment of the Commissioner, 
is this the Commissioner speaking on behalf of the Fed­
eral Government or is this the Commissioner acting on 
the advice given to him by a majority of the Executive 
Committee? 

Mr. Commissioner: Well, Mr. Chairman, in this 
particular instance the Commissioner has the authority 
to do these things under the Yukon Act. Parliament of 
Canada has said that he can do these things in the nor­
mal course of the conduct of his authority or the exer­
cise of his authority; he seeks the advice of the Execu­
tive Committee. 

( ) 
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lion .. \tr. Tavlor: Yes. but would the Commissioner 
I eel bound by the ad\ 1sc or concensus of the majority of 
the f':\ecutin• Committee 111 makmg such an appoint­
men r' 

:\lr. Commissioner: Well. \1r. Chairman. with re­
spect. the Executive Committee 1s a concensus making 
body·. there's no \'Oting goes on there. and these kinds of 
things come. in the normal course of events. for a deci­
sion making purposes and while the ultimate authority 
or the ultimate decisiOn has. the responsibility for it has 
to be born by the Commissioner. it 1-; the normal prac­
tice. the routine and the wishes of the Commissioner. in 
the exercise of those authon ties that he has the concen­
sus for what he is doing among those people that he 
works with on a dail v basis. ~amel v. the members of 
the Executive Comniittee. \1r. Chairman. I don't know 
how further I would attempt to clarify that particular 
situation 

:\'tr. Chairman : :\l r. :\1cCall".' 

:\'tr. :\tcCall: Yes. \-lr. Chairman. I would like to go 
to 6 sub I . I 'd I ike to know where this amount of time was 
derived from. not exceeding 10 years. I find that rather 
excessive. 

The Commissioner: :'-lot exceeding 

:\'tr. :vtcCall: B Not exceeding ten years. is still too 
much as far as a figure 

The Commissioner: Well . :\1r. Chairman. I think 
that the advise that came to the Executive Committee 
from the sub committee on legisla tion. was that instead 
of defining a particular period of year s. you know three 
years firm. or five years firm. that it would be much 
better to have a limit for the length of the appointment 
and then the particular circumstances that surrounded 
the appointment and the discussions of the Commis­
sioner would anticipate having with the individual cho­
sen and the Executive Committee. would then deter­
mine within the framework of that limit of what the 
actual period of time would be. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. I would differ with the 
Commissioner on that point. I would find that. not ex­
ceeding five years. would be a more appropriate figure. 
in this time that we are going through. 

The Commissioner: Wel l. of course you know if you 
want to talk about the term of appointment for the 
Commissioner. I fully agree that ten years is too long. 
:VIr. Chairman. But this is another kind of a commis­
sioner. and I would like to suggest that the flexibility 
that is allowed here would be subject to the prudent 
examination of aJI the facts surrounding it by the people 
who are involved in the appointment procedure of this. 

Mr. McCall: Well. no Mr. Chairman . I would nut 
agree with this particular language. at this point. and I 
would recommend that consideration be given to the 
and that amendment for five years instead of ten. 
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The Commissioner: We will consider this. 

\lr. :\lcCall: \1r. Chairman. I look at from sub 4 part 
3 to the l ast paragraph I'm left with the impression that 
the Commissioner appointed. to fill this particular role 
is going to have full autonomy. Is this correct? So he 
would have no control whatsoever. or nobodv else would 
have an:v control over him. · 

:\1r. Legal Advisor: The particular sections here 
are a copy from the sections which we use in giving 
independence to the :\1agistra te. and that is the purpose. 
the purpose was to give him a measure of independence 
from the Government. so the honourable member is 
correct. and that's where the drafting comes from. 

:\'tr. Chairman: \1r. Lengerke'? 

:\tr. Lengerke: A question for the Legal Advisor . 
why not just the Public Service Commissioner shall be 
appointed by the Commiss ioner. 

:vtr. Legal Adv isor : It is a policy question. Mr. 
Chairman. my instructions were to draft i t in such a way 
that the Pub I ic Service Commission was protected from 
influence by the employees on the one hand and by the 
government on the other. He was to be person in bet­
ween. So that's why it is drafted in th is particular way. 

:\1r. Lengerke: That's okay. 

Mr. Chairman: :vir. Berger ? 

:vtr. Berger: The subject. to \-1r. Legal Advisor is 
that he should be free of influence on both sides of. but in 
another jurisd iction or in special provinces the Publ ic 
Service Commission is responsible to the elected minis­
ter '? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: He would be. but it would be a 
Commission still independent on those responsible in 
the doing of his work for the Minister . His appointment. 
however. is protected to give him that independence. 
The responsibility. of course. must always be to a Minis­
ter . and. in this case. it is to a group of :vtinisters in the 
real sense. 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger'' 

Mr. Berger: If I make quote from Alberta Act here. 
it says the Lieutenant-Govenor in counsel shall appoint 
the Public Service Commissioner who shall admimster 
th1s act subject to the general direction of the :vlinister. 

:vtr. Chairman: \tr. Berger'? 

:vtr. Berger: One further point I would !ike to make 
also subJ l-<: t to Mr. McCall. the Honourable :\'Yember 
from Pelly. those other acts and there is no time limit 
set. and in most cases the appointment is on the be­
haviOur of the J'ublic Service Commissioner .So. in other 
word:-; , the time I unit could be set indefinitel y or at one 



or two years. I don·t thmk there should be a tune limit 
set on the appointment. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: :\1r . Chairman. when vou sav 
during good behaviour. It is an expression of protection 
and it gives the same tenure of office as a judge of the 
Supreme Court. Which means. that unless you can bring 
a charge against him. he goes on indefinitely until retir­
ing age. In effect. this is a drafting compromise between 
an indefinite appointment unt il the incumbent is 70 
years of age. and a chance for a government to recon­
sider the matter in groups of years to be set by itself. It is 
a compromise section in a sense. It is neither absolute 
protection nor is it a power of the government dismiss at 
will . It is an in between situation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr . McCall : My prime concern here. as far as the 
matter of time. is that I don't want to see a Public 
Service Commissioner appointed that is biased. and 1 
can see that coming if we are not careful. 

Hon. Mr . Lang: Can the Honourable Member exp­
lain? 

Mr. Chairman: I don't think the members heard or 
understood what you said Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: It doesn't really matter Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: You said that Mr. McCall'> Mr. 
Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: I was just simply going to make 
the point, Mr. Chairman, that in the section from the, I 
believe it was the, Alberta Act, that reference is made to 
the Lieutenant-Governor making the appointment. and 
I think that this House has already recognized an estab­
lished precedence is that the Commissioner is consi­
dered a Quasi Lieutenant-Governor in as much as he is 
given the Power to Assent to Bills, and this has been 
recognized in the changes made by this particular legis­
lature and recognized in Speeches from the Throne and 
so forth. So. in fact, it would be, to me, or seem to be to 
me , to be quite in concert with the Alberta Legislation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: In respect to what the Honourable 
Member just said, I also said that the Public Service 
Commissioner is responsible to elected Minister. He is 
appointed by a Lieutenant-Governor, but the responsi­
bility lies with a Minister not with the Lieutenant­
Governor. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, but in this respect I don't 
know whether we're talking chicken and eggs or not, 
Mr. Chairman , but it would occur to me that with the 
promise of the Minister, or the commitment of the 
Minister. that the Executive Committee would be a ma­
jority of elected people advising the Commissioner or 

l ';1!.!(' ;)fi(i 

quasi lieutenant -governor as ~·ou w1sh. That no doubt 
th1s would solve the problem equal!~· as well. 

:\-tr. Chairman: \1r. Berger·.' 

Mr . Berger: The Honourable :\1ember assumes 
things. Hight now we ha,·e no majority 111 the Executi,·e 
Committee here . We have a s tand-off of three bv three 
and then going on the facts that we have right now that 
we're going to he~ve a year from now 

Mr. Chairman: :VIr. Lang'? 

Hon. :\1r. Lang: Mr. Chairme~n. I think it's the un­
derstanding in the life of this Assembly there will be a 
majority of electred members on the Executive Com­
mittee. That is e~ commitment. 

Mr. Chair man: Mr. Berger'? 

:vir. Berger: But we're passing this legislation right 
now and at the present time we have no ma;ority there. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman with all due re­
spect, we must be responsible electors and responsible 
representatives, provide th is for, the Minister has made 
a commitment. we hold the Minister to that commit­
ment. I am reasonably confident notwithstanding that 
he will live up to that commitment and I'm prepared on 
behalf of those that I represent to provide for that. And I 
see no problem here at all. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: With all due respect to the Honourable 
Member but I find it kind of curious in the question that 
he's asked Mr. Commissioner before, if he was doing it 
on behalf of the Federal Government or the Territorial 
Government. And I can't see there's any connection 
there with his statements there. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well in response Mr. Chairman. 
with all due respect to the member, perhaps he is con­
fused. I asked the Commissioner if he was acting as 
Commissioner solely or on the advise of the Executive 
Committee. 

I have found in practice, in the past, that the Com­
missioner, from what we've been able to learn around 
this table , has indeed listened to the representatives 
from this Legislature, t he three Cabmet Ministers we 
have in the House, and has abided generally by their 
decisions and I'm prepared to accept that. I'm prepared 
to accept it in relation to this Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger'? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry 1 have to 
stand up again. I don't think the Honourable Member 
realizes that we have m effect a change of Commission­
ers coming up.! do not know the person, neither does the 
I louse know the person, neither does the Territory know 
the person. I think that Mr. Commissioner, up to this 
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date. I full.v agree with the Honourable \ l ernber . The 
tqx:oming change could change the whole subject of this 
Bil l. 

\1r. Chairman: \1r . Ta.vlor '.' 

lion. \lr. Tavlor: \lr. Chai rman could l ask the 
llonourable \1eniber from Klondike what is his great 
fear '? Co uld he explain to me what his great fear is in 
this regard in very concise terms'! Why is he afraid of 
allowing the Commissioner to make this appointment '' 
What could go wrong'? 

\1r. Berger: \1r. Chairman. as the llonourable 
\!ember from Pell y River pointed out. this Commis­
sioner has a lot of power. on top of it it's not responsible 
to an elected member . It's responsible to an appointed 
member . This is my fear. 

lion. \tr. Taylor: What could go wrong either way'' 

\1r. Chairman: :vtrs. Whyard '! 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: :vir . Chairman could l just ask a 
question of the llonourable Member from Klondike. In 
his reference to the fact that in Alberta the Public Ser ­
v ice Commissioner is responsible to an elected minis­
ter . Am I to infer from that that he is assuming that 
when an election changed power in that House the Pub­
lic Service Commissioner would change? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger '? 

Mr. Berger : I hope not. Mr. Chairman. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Well then--

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask the 
Legal Advisor a question here. I presume hypotheti­
cally that in Section 4, the Commissioner suspends the 
Public Service Commissioner, in sub 5, does this mean 
this Assembly would not receive any reports, even 
though inquiries had been conducted , before the Com­
missioner was suspended? Does this mean we would not 
get any reports for that particular period of time? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman, a report 
would be in order of the factual matter of what had 
occured. That question , it would take somewhat a form 
of, a question has arisen concerning the conduct of the 
Public of Commissioners and the matter been referred 
to as Supreme Court Judge, who had been appointed on 
the advise, of say of the Chief Justice of Alberta an 
inquiry is being held. Then that judge will then be the 
master of his own inquiry would make a report and 
recommendation and then the Commissioner must lay 
that judges report on the table together with any order 
he made, as a result of it, so it's making it a public 
matter. 

Mr. McCall: So what Mr. Legal Advisor 's saying, 
Mr. Chairman, is that even though our commissioner 
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has been suspended lor a period of time. the reports will 
still normally be tabled . Is this correct or given to us? 

\'lr. Legal Advisor : I 'm not sure I 'm making myself 
clear . there would be. what in effect is a mini law case 
an inquiry . people would be heard. the inquiry would be 
carried on. I would anticipate it would be somewhat 
improper for anybody to discuss in detail what was 
happening at an inquiry . until it had been concluded and 
a report had been made. but immediatley the inquiry is 
over . the resul ts are layed before the House. And are 
then open to debate. in similar manner to what would 
happen if a judge was to be in. or any other public 
officials as often happens. not in this jurisd iction. of 
course. but in other jurisdictions. 

:vir. Chairman: 7. 

1 READS CLAUSE 71 

\1r. Chairman: 8. 

1 READS CLAUSE 81 

Mr. Chairman: 9 11 1 

1 READS CLAUSE 9 1 

Mr. McCall: I'd like to go to sub B of 9 1 1 1. To test 
and certify qual ifica lions of candidates for admission to 
or promotion in the Public Ser vice. Just how is an indi­
vidual going to determine that as far as the qualifica­
tions. what qualifications do they have in order to de­
termine that. 

\1r. Legal Advisor : Mr. Chairman. perhaps we 
could respect the honourable member is sl ightly mis­
reading the section. when a person is being sought. we 'II 
say that the Hospital Administration has taken over and 
a number of Doctors are being sought for employment. 
And people then send in their names through qualifica­
tions. It's up to the Public Service Commisswn to check 
whether they meet the qualifications which the Hospital 
Administration have said are necessary for the holding 
of a paricular post. They go through the qual ifications 
and read all the data supplied by the applicants. Then if 
the applicants meet the minimum qualifications set. 
then they certify that that person is qualified for the 
appointment, and he then is put into a list of people who 
are available for the competition . It's not checking out 
the individual 's except in that regard . They do not make 
the choice , they fill out a form this person meets certain 
menial minimum qualifications. 

Mr. McCall: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. sub C. take 
any necessary action to ensure compliance with this 
ordinance or the regulation . I would like to know what 
action do you have in mind. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I don't know exactly what ac­
tion he has in mind, but examples would occur where 
Department Heads who are severely limited in what 
they can do within this ordinance, often do not take 
kindly to advice from the people they should ask it from. 



And they may be then told by the Public Service Com­
missioner to do the thing correctly. And I think the 
honourable member knows exactly what I mee~n. 

Mr. McCall: Supplementary. :vir. Chairman. would 
that also include an incorporate court action? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: That's a question of judgment. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: I would just! ike to with justa bit of 
clarification on Sub ( K l. to administer a program of 
security, as you know I've always risen in the table and 
accused the Government of being more like a Secret 
Service than a Government, and I'm just wondering 
what is inferred by the program of security. is this to 
lock up buildings, or is this to hide away documents. 
what is it? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: To lock up buildings. Mr. 
Chairman . 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Then I am firm that under section 
t K l it's not inferred that this is to withhold documents 
from public scrutiny and the public availab;!ity ? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Not so intended , Mr. Chairman. 

The Commissioner: We've given up on that, Mr . 
Chairman. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: The Honourable Member has 
already shown at this session, he usually knows about it 
before we do .. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I didn't want to see 
my espionage organization subdued as a result of this 
legislation. I thank you. 

The Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, neither do we. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor it would appear all the 
time that you have legalized your s ubversive activities. 
Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: May I have some further clarification 
on sub I to negotiate on beha lf of the with the territory 
with any authorized bargaining pursuant to any Ordi­
nance of the Territory. My previous question before, as 
to the appointees, in essense, is what you 're saying here 
that the same individuals is working on a daily basis 
with most of these people in the Government , a re now 
going to be m a posi tion to negotiate a contract. that's 
suicidal 

~1r. Commissioner: \1r. Chairman, with respect 
the~ have the authority to negot iatc the c-ontract and the 
procedure<; that havP breorne firmly established for our 
negotiating stance, and thr manner in which these 
thmp,s are conducted IS not m que-.,uon, Mr Chumnan.l 
th111k th,Jt 1~ rea .y wh,tt tl €' Honourable :\ft'mbcr I' 

lool-..n,: fur 

\1r. Chairman: :'11r. :\lcCall"! 

\lr. :v!cCall: :vir . Cha irman. 1 will disagree w1th 
that piece of language . I do not concur with the go,·ern­
menL. as far as that idea on concept. 

Some Members: Clear . 

Mr. Chairman: Two. 
Reads Clause 9.12 1 
Reads Clause 9.131 

Mr. McCall: Would that also inc lude the pr ivate 
files of any particular person in our Health Depart­
ment? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No :vir. Chairman. it wouldn't 
be broad enough for that. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. that's what it says 
here. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman. with respect. it 
says Personnel Matters. We a re dealing just with per­
sonnel matters. and employees private file within a de­
partment are his own property. or the property of the 
department which is handling it. such as health. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. I don't think so. 

Mr. Chairman: I think Mr. Legal Advisor he does 
have point where there is considerable over lap bet­
ween , what might be considered matters of health and 
matters of personnel and their competence to do their 
job, a nd I think that is what the Member is referring to. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: If that is intended the meaning 
shouldn't be taken out. The Member can sugges t a 
method of determining that the Public Sewrvice Corn­
mission does not have the right to go to a government 
hospital and take a fil e belonging to an individual who is 
being treated in the hospital. Then, I am sure the gov­
ernment would consider it, but it was not intended in this 
draft to g ive that wide power to go right through and 
take a file which is not a personnel matter but is a 
private file between a doctor and his patient. I think that 
the other Ordinance dealing with that will protect those 
files. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman. I think we should con­
sider amendments of this particular language to allow a 
restriction to preve nt the interference into the medical 
files of any individ ual 

Mr. Chairman: One of the problems I think. Mr 
Legal Advisor, that you yourself alluded to was, that 
these are not pero;onal files between the phys1c1an and 
tlH' patient they ar<' the files that belong to the govern­
ment agency Tlwv do not belong to l'ither the doctor or 
thl' patient. 

\1r. Legal \dHsor: Hut. With n prct. \1r Ch[ 1r 
'l11ra It .3'v' fJIP rl'lahng tope Ol'nel rnatter5 Pn­
son•wl m J\t('r'-i 'o 'Til' re.dte to th(' ( rnplo;, m€ nt of an 
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mel iv1dual and his employer and for tha t purpose only. I 
cannot see how when a person goes to a doctor to get a 
boil lanced that that becomes a personnel f1le. It is a 
medical fil e. 

:\1r. McCall: \-1r . Cha irman. I think the Legal Ad­
visor is getting off on the wrong track here. He is leaving 
me with the impression that the government does not 
carry on med ical s for their employees. or something 
along that nature. which is part of his personnel and 
pnvate fil e. and there is slight separation here. You 
have to cons ider that. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Cha irman, there is the 
power taken to require a civil ser vant to subject hi mself 
to medical examination. That is quite a different mat­
ter Tha t would be part of the personnel records, what 
the result was, submitted by the medical officer ap­
pointed . and they would be properly kept within the file. 
That is the only kind of medical file I can think of, they 
would have. other than medical certificate tendered by 
an employee in respect to certain matters. Say, sick 
leave or earl y retirement or such like. They can send in 
a medical certificate. But, that wouldn't be the medical 
file that the Honourable Member is thinking of. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor, those medical 
certificates. as they are usually formulated , do contain 
a section which the patient himself has no knowledge of 
wha tgoes on it, and which goes directly to the employer. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairma n, I could clarify it 
fur ther on that point. I have seen medical documenta­
tion used against an employee in a discriminatory man­
ner. Simply because it was put on his personnel file, 
which it should never be there. You are saying, lam left 
with the impression the Legal Advisor intends to use 
this same type of documentation which I feel is wrong. 

Mr. Chairman: If I might interject for a moment. 
Both the Chairman and Deputy Chairman are getting in 
debate with the Legal Advisor which is not their role. I 
would suggest a brief recess while we try and iron this 
out. 

Recess. 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
For the moment I would like to pass the chairmanship 
over to Mr. McCall . 

Mr. McCall becomes Chairman 

Mr. Chairman: You had a question Mr. Hibberd ? 

Mr. Hibberd: Thank you. :\1r. Chairman. Prior to 
recess the <iiscussion centred over the probl em of 
whether th<' Public ScrvlC'e Cofllm•sswner, or his de­
lgate would !,ave access to per:sonnel matters of every 
department, branch or dl\ is IOn of Public Service and 
may exclmme dnd take <xtracts thereof. 

I would like to brmg It to the attentwn of the mem 
b€r<> of the C'o'llmltlc€ that we helVe .1 habit. it is known 
to IX' of a hCJbit of cop) ing semor government m many 
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areas. I would like to bring to attention the document 
has been in use for at least seventeen years. to my 
knowledge by the Federal Government, in which a 
physician is required to fill out a document of the ab­
sence of an employee. The top part is the usual, the 
name , classification. etcetera , but as to the diagnoses it 
asked for the doctor to sign it and put his address down. 

It's followed by a dotted line and you tear it on the 
dotted line. Physicians confidential report which go di­
rectly to the employer and the employee has no know­
ledge tha t this has gone to or what is on it, whatsoever. 

This is the danger that we are facing by making 
such a move as listed in this article. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes , Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman could I say this 
that when we were drafting this, we were not aware of 
this problem. Could the matter be considered in the light 
of what was said so that we can consider whether or not 
we need a protective sub-section to be added to this. 

Mr. Chairman: Definitely, Mr. Legal Advisor, that 
will hopefully be considered. I'd like to pass the chair 
back to Mr. Hibberd. 

Mr. Hibberd becomes Chairman 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. McCall. We have 
with us in the Gallery , three members of the Yukon 
Territorial Public Service Alliance and we had agreed 
that they could appear as witnesses during the reading 
of this Bill . At this time they would like to present a brief 
to Committee, if Committee is in agreement. 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Chairman: Could we now have with us as wit­
nesses, three members of Y.T.P.S.A. Mr. Rick Lamp­
shire, business agent, Mrs. Kay Campbell , president 
and Mr. Jim McCullough chief shop steward. 

Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman perhaps for the 
stenographic staff they could be identified so that they 
know which is speaking, who is who. 

Mr. Chairman: Very well , I think Mr. Lampshire 
has a brief to present at the moment. 

Carry on Mr. Lampshire . 

Mr. Lampshire: Okay, thank you Mr. Chairman. 
All right first of all I'd like to apologize . Apparently I 
was, had my wires crossed and we were supposed to be 
here at 1·30 and I'd like to apologize and thank you for 
waiting for us 

We do have a bnef and first of all, it's a fair!) 
lengthy brief and it mentions a few things about the 
Public Civil Sen•ice at the Federal level but JUSt to 
exemplify our posllion on this Ordinance at thiS time If 
you will bear with me I'd like to go through my bnef 
First of all I'd like to read It and any questiOns you have 
on the bnef, I'd like to answer those questions. if I can. 

F1rst I'd like to thank the Yukon Legislatl\e A<; 



sembly for the opportunity to appear and represent the 
position of the Y.T.P.S.A. on a proposed new Public 
Service Commission Ordinance. Legislation is ex­
tremely important to our over 700 member employees 
of theY. T.G . It is also important to the other employees 
who do not fall into the collective agreement between 
the Y.T.G. and the P.S.A.C. The importance of this Or­
dinance cannot be minimized. The employee, employer 
relations with the Y.T.G. are determined mainly by this 
Ordinance. The Public Service Staff Relations Ordi­
nance, the personnel's policies and directives manual 
from whjich Commissioner's Orders flow and of course 
the collective agreement which is negotiable between 
the two parties. 

Public Service Staff Relations Ordinance enshrines 
in law the right to collective bargaining, formation of 
powers of the Public Service Staff Relations Board, the 
process of dispute settlement, ie. concilliation arbitra­
tion the process of union certification, decertification, 
prohibition during lawful and unlawful strike, the grie­
vance procedure and adjudication process. 

Personnel policies and directives deal with condi­
tions of employment for non-bargaining employees ie. 
managerial , confidential exclusions, to directors outlin­
ing policies on travel, housing, etcetera, that affect all 
employees of the Y.T.G. Thecollectiveagreementdeals 
only with those terms and conditions allowed under the 
Public Service Staff Relations Ordinance. 

This leaves the Ordinance that we are now consider­
ing, the Public Service Commission Ordinance, At pre­
sent better known as the Public Service Ordinance. 

This is , in effect, the Ordinance that determines the 
condition of employment for Yukon Territorial civil 
servants. It should be emphasized that the title Public 
Service Commission Ordinance is not a truly descrip­
tive title. It could more aptly be called Public Service 
Employment Ordinance. Many of the sections in the 
Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Excuse me, Mr. Lampshire , our 
recorders are having a little difficulty. If you could slow 
down a bit. 

Mr. Lampshire: Slow down. Sorry. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, are copies of 
the brief available for recording staff members ? 

Mr. Lampshire: I am sorry, they are not. I could 
make copies for it after. 

Mr. Chairman: Is it the wish of the Committee that 
copies be made available now? Please continue Mr. 
Lamps hire. 

Mr. Lampshire: Okay, I will slow down a bit, Mr. 
Chairman. This is, in effect, the ordinance that deter­
mines the conditions of employment for Yukon Territor­
ial civil servants. It should be emphasized that the title 
Public Service Commission Ordinance is not a truly 
descriptive title. It could more aptly be called the Public 
Service Employment Ordinance. Many of the sections 
in the Ordinance deal with specific employment condi­
tions of an employee upon entering the Public Service. 
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Sections on probation. retirement. resignation. trans­
fer. suspension and dismissal. political partisanship. 
layoffs. contracts of employment all deal directly with 
the employment conditions of the public servants. 

We are. perhaps. fortunate in the liming of this 
Ordinance. At the Federal level of the public service a 
very comprehensive study is taking place right now on 
employer employee relations in the Public Service ot 
Canada . 

Jacob Finkleman. who was Chairman of both the 
Federal and Yukon Staff Relations Board. has been 
asked to suggest legislative changes to the Federal Pub­
lic Service Staff Relations Act and the Federal Public 
Service Employments Act. 

It should be noted these two acts are quite similar to 
the Yukon's Public Staff Relations Ordinance and Pub­
lic Service Ord inance. The process of examining the 
employer employee relations in the Federal Public Ser­
vice has been taken very seriously. Along with the 
aforementioned Finkleman Report. the Government of 
Canada established in October 1974. a special joint 
committee of the Senate and the House of Commons on 
employer employee relations. This Committee has been 
sitting since then. for the purpose of hearing briefs. 
presented by trade unions and other interested parties. 
On the recommendations contained in the Finkleman 
Report. As you can see th is has been a long and involved 
process. 

The main emphasis in the Finkleman Report has 
been based on share decision making . In the 
Chairman's opinion, the old legislation has become in 
operatable with the passing of time and the changing of 
conditions. He emphasizes the reasonableness of par­
ticipating unions, in the past, and the great need for 
joint decision making in the future. In almost all re­
commendations. he has suggested that unions be 
awarded more participation in the working conditions 
of their members. Which brings us to the Ordinance at 
hand . The Public Service Commission Ordinance. 

The alliance, YTPSA, has some very strong objec­
tions to several sections of this Ordinance. This Ordi­
nance in its present form does not consider in any way a 
stornger and more formalized joint decision making 
process. What I mean to say, is it does not consider 
employer employee relations, ie. share decision mak­
ing, as has been outlined and recommended in the Fink­
leman Report. 

It has, in fact, consolidated and entrenched the old 
beliefs of arbitrariness and the unilaterial decision 
making for the employer. The YTPSA finds it very dif­
ficult to live with this type of retrogressive legislation. 

The time allowed for our representation has been 
far too short. At present, the Public Service Alliance of 
Canada, to which our union is affiliated, is working on a 
brief to present to you, the elected officials of the Yukon 
to outline our objections, fears and recommendations. 
This takes time, but this time is necessary in order to 
present our case in as logical and comprehensive man­
ner as possible. 

The Legislative Assembly, along with YTG and the 
YTPSA have a great opportunity before us. We can be 
leaders in a field of labour relations and Canadian Pub­
lic Service. In order to accomplish this the YTPSA and 
the PSAC need more time to research and formulize 
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thei r presen ta lion. 
I woul d like to gtve you some indica tion of wha t we 

be lie ve to be content ious issues. l should stress that 
these are the ideas ot t he YTPSA '' ,,; ,.h ha~ been sub­
mttted to the PSAC for mclusion in theu bnef should we 
be given the time and opportuni ty to submit that brief. 

~umber one. our maJOr concern has already been 
tnd tca ted. is the total lack of participa tory decision 
making·> Number two. casual employees. Their length 
of service a nd the te rms a nd conditions of employment 
are 111 question . 

~umber three. Section 102. the del egation of author­
ity to unite heads or officers of the department and how 
tha t delegation will be handled . 

Number four . c lassi fication. It should be bargaina­
ble and , if not . it should be done in formalized consul ta­
t ion and the decision s hould be aj udicable. 

Number five. organiza tion and es tablishment. It 
should involved the bargaining agent to a greater de­
gree because of its potential ad verse e ffect on our 
members. 

Six , appointments. There should be some type of 
appeal and an effort should be made to pick qualified 
people from within the Territorial Public Service rather 
than through the normal and often abused practice of 
ope n competition . 

Number seven . the merit principle. There should be 
some safeguard to police the merit system, or this 
seniority sys tem should be inaugurated. 

Number e ight, probation. In ques tion here is the 
length of probation period and the rights of the emp­
loyee during that period . 

Number nine, resignations. We totally agree, dis­
agree with Section 131. 

Number 10 transfer, we totally disagree with the 
Sections 136 and 137. 

Number 11 , suspensions and dismissal s; we'd like 
to introduce a different concept, i.e. the grievance pro­
cedure ove r the appeal procedure ; we also oppose the 
expanded definition. 

Number 12, political office; we would like absolute 
freedom . 

Number 13, layoffs: we disagree with the expanded 
definition ; we would like layoffs to be done on seniority 
and would like an appeal procedure on re-hires. Also, 
leave section 182, which is notice of layoff , in the collec­
tive agreement where it presently stands. 

Number 14, contracts of em ployment; a safeguard 
that these contracts will not be entered into where the 
job security and pure aspirations of the existing emp­
loyee is jeopardized. 

As you can see by our lists of concerns, they a re 
extensive; because of the complexities of our change, 
we're asking this Legislative Assembly to consider our 
request for an extension. The ramifications of many of 
these sections could adversely affect a large number of 
employees. The unilateral decision-making afforded 
the Public Service Commission could have a greatly 
adverse effect on the morale of the public servant and 
this in turn would affect the now high quality of service 
given to the Yukon public . That's our brief, Mr. Chair­
man 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 
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Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. Mr. Chairman . Mr. 
Lampshire. you mentioned that you had too short a time 
to prepare. Could I ask you this; how. in your estima­
tion . how long do you require to fully come to a report. 
considering all these points that you have put forward ? 

Mr. Lampshire: Well , what we do is we would send 
down-- we sent down our submission to the Public Ser­
vice Alliance of Canada and they would have their re­
searchers in Ottawa, first of all, formalize our com­
plaints and put in reasons for our complaints and argu­
ments for our complaints. They, in turn, would also 
have-- are also having their legal advisors look at the 
ordinance to determine any wording that is an adverse 
wording or wordings that we have some contentious 
issues on. And how long this will take, I couldn't say for 
sure. but a month. two months. 

Mr. Lengerke: Would you think a month would be 
satisfactory? 

Mr. Lampshire: Yes, Mr. Chairman. we could 
probably have a brief within a month. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that 
when we embarked on this Ordinance that some notice 
was given and obviously, I always get a little uptight 
when I talk about hearing of more decisions from Ot­
tawa, I like to see decisions here at the home base level 
and more particularly, in this case, by the employees of 
the Yukon Public Service Association, rather than the 
Federal scene. And it seems to me that the Yukon Pub­
lic Service Association have given a great deal of con­
sideration to this matter, as outlined in the 14 points that 
have been raised by Mr. Lampshire. I think that's very 
credible. I think that really , if we're going to be respon­
sible at all , I think we should sit here and, as these points 
arise, ask questions of the witnesses and start resolving 
something here at home for a change instead of looking 
at Ottawa all the time for decisions. And it's this public 
service of the territory working in the territory that we 
should be concerned about ; I think we should try and 
effect a piece of legislation which is equitable and fair 
and honest on both sides . But to wait for a brief from 
Ottawa, I just can' t somehow acquaint that in my own 
mind. I think that the public service of the territory have 
enough credibility and enough responsibility - they have 
listed 14 points here - to be able to sit down with this 
Committee and go through it with us point by point and 
raise these points. That's what we'r e here for . I put 
more fa ith in the public ser vice of the territory than I 
ever would in the Feder al Public Service who , maybe, 
are trying to sell a dream to Canada. 

Mr. Lamps hire: Mr. Chairman, could I answer that 
ques tion? 

Hon. Mr . Taylor: Mr. Chair man , the witnesses are 
here to answer questions, not to debate; however, I 
would like an opinion from the witness on that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lampshire? 



Mr. Lampshire: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I think. 
first of all. I'd I ike to explain the structure of the YPSA 
in relationship to the Public Service All iance of Canada. 
The Public Service Alliance of Canada is the parent 
body of our union, and we are but a local of that union. 
Whenever we run into problems. the expertise. outside 
of myself. who is the only hired business agent in the 
territory for federal or territorial government emp­
loyees and who works for the Public Service Alliance of 
Canada, we always submit our complaints to the Public 
Service Alliance of Canada in order to get interpreta­
tions and i f we have an interpretation problem they send 
up the grievances officers who are expertise in that 
field . 

At present, we pay approximately $5.25 for union 
dues and , of that, we get $2.25 back and it just doesn't 
afford us the money to have legal counsel in the terril· 
ory to go over this legislation and look at this legislation. 
The Public Service Alliance applies a service to its 
members through its expertise. and ths service is paid 
by the members through their union dues that go to 
Ottawa. in the Public Service Alliance. I must suggest. 
Mr. Chairman, that we will have a very big amount of 
input into this ordinance from the Yukon Territory. But 
we still need an interpretation on wording; we still need 
an interpretation on have we missed anything that 
might adversely affect us. 

The Public Service Alliance has just recently made 
a submission to the Finkleman Report and they have a 
lot of recommendations and they have a lot of informa­
tion already compiled that we could use in our argu­
ments. Secondly, we could argue, we have contentious 
issues and we have found contentious issues that we 
would want some resolution on; our arguments would 
be of a verbal nature and it would not be put down in a 
logical form: that would be done in brief form . 

And I think this is the most important part of the­
our argument is that we could argue verbally but we'd 
rather have it in brief form and then explain the brief at 
that time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman, perhaps we 
should all r ecognize the fact that, with due respect to our 
esteemed Legal Advisor, that he's the man that has 
prepared no doubt this legislation and that leaves the 
rest of us-- we, as a legislature, we have no independent 
advice other than that given us by the poor unfortunate 
Legal Advisor who ser ves two masters. And perhaps 
serves the government the best. 

I'm still offended when I- you know, I'm a believer 
that we should give the unions back to the working men, 
and I've always believed that. I've said it before at this 
table and I might as well say it right now. And every 
time .... 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson would like to go back 
to work, Mr. Taylor. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, every time the 
questions of organized labour come up, I th ink of people 
in New York running things in the Yukon and people in 
Los Angeles running things in the Yukon, and in this 

case l"m thmkin1 about (WOple 111 Ott;ma nmntn.~s 
things in the Yukon 

As I tried to sta te before. <tnd perhaps Ill\ word-.: 
were not clearlv hcard. I t'unk that within the Yukon 
Public. 11w Yukon Terri torv l'ublw S(•rvteP :\ssouatton. 
we have the t'xpPrtisc to :,It down w1th till' emplo:ver. 
which is the government 

Mr. Chairman: Order. \1r Ta vlor. order. \lr. 
Taylor Oo you have a quc-;tion for the witness·· 

Hon. "r. Taylor: Yes. \1r. Ch<tirman. when I finish 
I'll ask a question .... And !think that therc is the exper­
t ise here within the Yukon Terntorv to sit down and deal 
with this legislation at th1s time. Ai1d I would thin k that 
we should go through tt. certainl y. \1r. Lampshire and 
the other two witnesses if thev can bear with us. and 
raise these points as they con1e: perhaps we may find 
that we have someth ing .... 

Mr. Chairman: :vir. Taylor. l"m sorry. vou will have 
to sit down. · · · 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Thank you. :vir. Chairman. Could 
Mr. Chairman explain to me why I have to sit down·' On 
a point of order. 

tLAUGHTERl 

Mr. Chairman: You·re welcome to stand again if 
you have a question of the witnesses. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well, Mr . Chairman. on a point of 
order I'm not prepared to take this. I'm in an unfortu­
nate posi tion to ask or to question your ruling. Mr. 
Chairman. This is a Committee of the Whole and it has 
always been held, up until this last short while. that 
members could debate in this Committee. I f it is now 
becoming the policy of the Committee that it is not. 
perhaps, possible to debate, then perhaps we're break· 
ing tradition, parliamentary tradition. and I would like 
from the Chair man to know why'? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. while wi tnesses are 
present before Committee. it is our responsibil i ty to 
question those witnesses and pursue debate thereafter. 
I would like to appeal to Committee for their feel ings 
about this. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard '? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: A suggestion has been made by 
Mr. Lampshire that the Public Service requires fwther 
time to complete their study and brief on this proposed 
ordinance. Earlier in this session we heard requests 
from other members of this House that similar action 
should be taken. that there should be time to study and 
work on this ordinance and that, in fact, a special com­
mittee should be named to do so. A committee of this 
House. 

I was one of the people who supported that idea. Mr. 
Chairman, and I would like to hear other members 

) 

) 

) 



() 

) 

to cia_,. on th 1s repca ted suggest ion. 

\lr. Chairman: \lr. \lclnt.\Te'! 

\lr. \lclntvre: Yes. \lr. Chairman. I am com­
plete! ~· in symp.ath~· with the request for time to have a 
brief prepared b~· the advtsors of this union who. unfor­
tunately. live 111 Ottawa. I think that it is quite a reason­
able request. 

VIr. Chairman: Perhaps. tf we have no further 
questions lor the witnesses. the witnesses could be ex­
cused and we could continue with the debate as :vir. 
Taylor would like. Are there any fur ther questions at 
th1s moment for the witnesses'! Thank vou ver v much . 

\1r. :YlcCall'' · · 

VIr. VlcCall: Thank vou. \1r. Chairman. I think. 
before we go any further into this Bill. I 'd like to throw 
out a motion for the :vi embers to consider if vou would at 
this t ime. And the motion is to allow Bili 8 to die in 
Committee. 

VIr. Berger: I second that. 

VIr. Chairman: It has been moved bv \1r. :YlcCall. 
seconded by :vir. Berger. that Bill number 8 be allowed 
to die in Committee . Any further discussion'! :Ylrs . Wat­
son'' 

:Yirs. Watson: :vir . Chairman. I don't know how I 
would even vote on this. I know that there is a great deal 
of work being done on this legislation . I know that we 
may not ever have the opportuni ty to establish a Pub! ic 
Service Commissionn . I think we have to make some 
very profound decisions at this time. 

I certainl y wouldn't want to take a vote on that 
motion today . I'd like to have the opportunity to think 
about it and be prepared to vote on it tomorrow. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre'1 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman. I wonder how the 
Administration and the Executive Committee feel s 
about the possibility of doing something with this- with­
drawing the Bill at this time and preparing to re-submit 
it in a month's time. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. if the Bill were 
left to die in Committee, l think all members of the 
Executive Committee would take the posi tion that there 
would be a Spring Session of Council. that this Session 
was probably prorogue. and there would be two. three 
pieces of legislation. one of them being this very impor­
tant ordinance. that would be before a Spring Session of 
the Assembly. And if it were the members' wish that 
they thought a month was in the area of ttme that would 
be necessar y for the proper work to be done. then we 
would feel that this would probably be the time period 
that we're gi ven. 

I might say that on the remarks of the members of 
the P .S.A.C. that I would like some time. too.to examine 
the work that they have already done. I think that we're 
going to have some very interesting pomts of debate 
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around the Assemblv. I'm sure that all members will 
want to be as prepare'd as they possibly can be to discuss 
this very important piece of legislation . :\1ake no mis­
take about it. i t is an important piece of legislation. 

VIr. Chairman: \llr . Taylor'' 

Hon. VIr. Taylor: VIr. Chairman. this is my very 
poin t- it seems that we are just going to waste a great 
deal of time by shelving the Bill at this t ime. I t was my 
understanding. and it had always been as long as I stood 
in this House. you take the Bil l. you get all the parties 
concerned. all the information you can. you go through 
it section by section. find the sections that are objec­
tionable or in contention. then the administration have 
an opportunity to sit down and consider what their posi­
tion is in this regard and perhaps recess a couple of 
weeks and come back and find the solutions to these 
problems. It was for that reason I suggested we carry on 
with the Bill. 

So. okay. what we are really doing by delaying this 
thing a month or two months is putting it to May or June. 
at which time we will arrive at a question that we should 
be arriving at r ight now. which wil l further delay the 
Bill and then it will be fal l before anything is done with 
it. and it doesn't make sense to me. Why not just throw it 
off to the Fall Session and be done with it. 

Mr. Chairman: VIr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall : Thank you. Mr. Chairman. In view of 
what the Honourable :Vlember has just stated. the intent 
behind the Motion is to allow it to die in Committee in 
order to get each of the :Vtembers and other interested 
parties appearing at that time where we can do further 
research because the intent at the beginning when this 
Bill was first presented in the House was to strike a 
committee to do this particular work while we were in 
Session. and the Honourable Member again is con­
tradicting himself with his intent and philosophy behind 
his amount of work he doesn't do. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: On a point of order. Mr. Chair­
man. it is quite contrary to the rules of this House to 
impute the motives of any :'vlember. and I think that the 
Honourable Member from Pell y River should be cen­
sored and asked to withdraw those remarks as being 
objectionable. 

Mr. McCall: I will withdraw those remarks if thev 
are painful. That's no problem. To go on to what I was 
saying. Mr. Chairman. like I said. the intent of the mo­
tion is to allow it to die in Committee and I am hoping the 
Members will then do the research before the Spring 
Sitting. 

Mr. Chairman: :\1r Berger'' 

Mr. Berger: Yes. \lr Chairman. I haven't got 
much to add to this. This is what my mtent was in sec­
ond ing the motion and to see that this Bill will come 
back again in a month's time. or a month and a half's 
time. but it will not disappear. I think it is too important 
a legislation to disappe<~r and the past legtslation is high 



time to be updated. but we need tlw eo-operation of both 
sides. the government side and the people in,·ol \'eel in 
the whole thing. l would like to pomt out to the Honoura­
ble :vl ember from Watson Lake. I don't think he under­
stands the structure of unions these davs . YTPSA hasn't 
got the research staff available in tlie Yukon. The re­
search staff is located in Ottawa and it is a matter of 
fact. and nothing the Honourable :vlember can do at this 
time. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Perhaps. then. this should be de­
felTed to a session next November. 

\1r. Chairman: Unfortunately. I think there are a 
couple of questions that I would have liked to ask the 
witnesses before they disappeared from our presence. 
so I would like to call a brief recess while I could get 
those questions answered . 

1 RECESS I 

Mr. Chairman: l now call this committee to order. 
During the recess. the YTPSA gave us the information 
that they presented in their brief today. they have also 
agreed to. on receipt of their information from Ottawa 
to redistribute that to the members of Committee. so 
that it might be available for reconsideration before the 
bill again would come up for the Commit tee. l have 
pointed out that if this motion is successful . to the mem­
bers of YTPSA, that the Government will probably want 
the Legislative Assembly to sit in fairl y short order. 
which would be within a month or something of that 
nature. So, that they would have to be prepared within 
that time frame. 

Some Members: Question. 

Hon. Mrs . Whyard: I 'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, 
would you repeat that , what motion? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, there is a motion on the floor 
here? 

Mr. Chairman: No, there'snota motion on the floor. 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, there is. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall : l would l ike to re-emphasi ze that mo­
tion at this t ime Would you read the motiOn please. 

Mr . McCall : The motion is that Hill number 8 die in 
Committee. 

:\-1r. Legal Advisor: Mr Chairman. it might be ad­
visable if he didn't formally present his motiOn. because 
be ing a procedure of motion. it's not subject to debate. 

\lr. Chairman: The Sl'<'OIHier '! 

\tr. l~crgcr: I second that. 

\lr. Chairman: It was rno,·ed b\' \lr. \ k Call. Sl'l' 

ondcd b~· \ 'lr. Berger that I ~JII :\umber !l be allowed to 
die in Committee . All those Ill Fa\'()lll''' :\ show or hands 
please 

Some Vlembcrs: Agreed 

Hon. Vlrs. Whyard: I don' t think there is such a 
motion but I 'll agree. 

VIr. Chairman: Contrary. \lotion is carri ed. 

.\10TIO.\' IS CARR I ED 

Mr. Chairman: It is a procedural motion and non­
debatable. We will proceed with the clause by clause 
read ing or Bill number 9. 

BILL :'-JU:viBEH. 9 

!\'tr. McCall: :vlr. Chairman. I would like to move 
that Bill Number 9 die in committee wi thout debate. 

\1r. Lengerke: I'll second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McCall. 
seconded by Mr. Lengerke that Bill Number 9 die in 
committee. All those in favour. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Chair man. there is no such 
motion, Mr. Chairman . No. there is not a die in commit­
tee, that's not parlimentary procedure . 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Perhaps this should have been left 
to die in committee as the proper phraseology. 

Mr. McCall: I will revert it Mr. Chairman. Motion 
was to be left in to die in committee without debate. 

Mr. Chairman: It's an undebateable motion. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, am I to understand 
that we're not even going to discuss this even in the 
principal. 

Mr. Chairman: It was committee's vote that it be 
left to die in committee.The motion carried . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : Was it even moved into com­
mittee? Oh, well all right, Mr. Chair man. I n se on a 
point of order. and I protest this action. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: I second that. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. McCall: Can we proceed to the next Bil l. 
please'? 

Bon. :\1ro;. Whyard: :--lo. :\1r. Chairman 

\1r. Chairman: I would ask i\lr Speaker to resume 

I ' 

) 



n 

<) 

till' Cha1r 

\11{ . SI'E:\h:EI{ HESL':\1F:S l'II.\IH 

\Jr. Speakl.'r: I will now call the !louse to ordl•r. \1a~· 
I h;l\·e a report from the Ch;urman or Committee's'.' 

\lr. Hibbl.'rd: Yes. \ ·1r. Speaker. Committee as a 
whole was about to embark upon the clause b~· clause 
reading of Bill :-lumber 9. when it was mo\·ed and sec­
onded I hat B iII :'-lumber 9 be left to die in Commit tee. the 
motion was dul~· carried. this \lotion has bC'en pro­
testrd . The result or this motion has been protested. 

Thl' Speakl.'r: Does the Chair han• it that the mo­
tion. that the Bill in question be lett to dil• 111 commi ttee 
did carry' 111 committee·.• 

\1r. Hibberd: Yes. \1r. Speaker . 

\lr. Speaker: Then that would have to bC' the deci­
sion or the Committee and the Committee is bound bv 
that decision. Is there anything further to report'? Th.e 
llonourable \ 1ember from Whitehorse West ·.• 

lion . :\Irs. Whvard: :vtav l ask if division was called 
on that vote and ~as it recorded :VIr. Speaker'? 

:vtr. Speaker: Yes. under the rules or the House. 
votes or individual members are not recorded in the 
Committee of the Whole. Only in the House. 

lion. :vtrs. Whyard: l call that closure. \1r. Speaker. 

:vtr. Speaker: Is there any further discussion on this 
matter. may I have your further pleasure. The Honour­
able :vtember from Whitehorse South Centre·' 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker. if it's any consolation to 
the members across the table from me. I am very con­
cerned that this Bill was not discussed in committee. as 
I would have liked to have seen it done. 

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure at 
this time. The Honourable :vlember from Pelly River'? 

Mr. McCaJl: Mr. Speaker. I would now move that 
Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair. and the House 
resolve back into committee. 

Mr. Speaker: For what purpose'? 

Mr. McCall: For considering Bills. Sessional Pap­
er s and motions. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Petty River, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Klondike. that Mr . Speaker do now leave 
the Chair and that the House resolve into the committee 
of the whole for the purpose of discussing Bills. Ses­
sional Papers. and Motions. Are you prepared for the 
Question? 

Some Members: Question. 
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\lr. Speaker: :\re .\'Oll agreed·.• 

Some \lembers: .\greed. 

\lr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion is carried . 

.\10TIO.\' CAH.RIED. 

\Itt SPE AKE!{ LE .-\\'ES THE CHA[[{ 

C0\1\I !TTEE OF T ilE WllOl.E 

Mr. Chairman: l now call this Committee to order. 
\Irs. Whyard'' 

lion. :\o1rs. Whyard: \ 1r. Chairman. it seems to me 
that we now ha\·c a whole new philosophy in this House. 
that if \1embers don't like a piece or legislation that is 
brought before them. they simp!~· move it d ie in Com­
mittee and then zap ~·ou don't e\·en read the Bil l. I call 
that irresponsible. :V1r. Chairman. 

:Hr. Chairman: I bring it to .vour intention. :vtrs. 
Whva rc!. that there was a motion before Committee and 
it \~·as \'Oted on and passed . I would declare a brief 
recess where I figure out where we go next. 

I{ECESS 

BILL :--;U\1BEH. 13 

Mr. Chairman: l call this Committee to order. We 
have one fur ther Bill for consideration. Bill :-Jo. 13. One. 

t H.EADS CLAUSE ONE 1 

Mr. Chairman: \1r. McCall'.' 

:vtr. McCall: Mr. Chairman . I would like to ask the 
Legal Ad visor of these three figures in Sub 1 a I of 
$15.000.00. $500.00 per month. and $'25.000.00. How was 
the figure $500.00 per month calculated between these 
two figures? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: :vtr. Chair man I don't know how 
the relationship was calculated. For all the time that we 
have been negotiating with Canada it was $15.000.00 or 
$500.00 a month. and we signed the agreement and we 
drafted the Bill. but we drafted i t to conform wi th the 
agreement. which has been agreed to. but somebody 
had left out of the agreement the upper limit of 
$25.000.00. How they forgot about it I don't know. but 
then when it came to sign the Bill on the re-draft. we 
found this.lt meant we had to change it. Precisely. how 
they arrived at $500.00. I just don't know. it was just a 
figure that was talked about. and we don't know the 
reason behind it. 

Mr. McCaJI: Mr. Chairman. supplementary to that. 
these three figures shall not exceed $15.000.00. would 
leave me a victim who was claiming compensation to 
choose to take the $500.00 a month. because the figure of 
$25.000.00 is more attractive than the $15.000.00. Well 
there seems to be a little disparity there with the two 



figures . 

Mr. Legal Advisor: :\1r. Chairman there is no dis­
parity in pension payments under Workmen'sCompen­
sation and other similar type of legislation. The amount 
payable over a long period . a lways total s up more than 
the quick settlement. beca use the person gets a bird in 
the hand rather than a bird in the bush. or whatever the 
expression is. Cash now is better than postponement 
over a long penod. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Cha irman. supplementary to that. 
To ge t away from the bird s and the bushes . this 
$25,000.00, I feel wouldn't 1t be more appropriate as a 
standard set figure where a person or a victim could 
claim I'd say a lump sum or over a period of time not 
exceeding $25,000.00. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No. Mr. Chairman, actuarially 
speaking you try to make it attractive to take a lump 
sum, but not too attractive. It is easier adminis tratively 
to take the lump sum. so you try to attract them to do 
that, but if they cannot for some reason or another. 
maybe under a disability they may not be able to do it. 
then you pay them for a period . This is in conformity 
with actuarily experience. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall ? 

Mr. McCall: But, in event this does, is used to a 
large extent, there would be more compensation vic­
tims going on a monthly payment basis than a I ump sum 
claim. So, you know, you basically would only be deal­
ing with one set figure . 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Perhaps , Mr. Cha irman, it is 
hard to formulate experience. since we only had pay­
ment , and that gentleman didn't want any money at all. 
He just wanted medical bills paid as he was leaving, a 
stranger passing through leaving the territory. So we 
just have this one single item of doctors and hospital 
bills to pay and we can't formulate it. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I have great reluc­
tance to accept a ceiling on something like this. I have 
forgotten , in the original ordinance is the victim allowed 
also to sue us if it is a part of that circumstances so that 
he could raise the compensation that he might be al­
lowed . 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, he can sue, 
but then t he Commissioner is subrogated to his rights to 
collect up to tha t amount. He could get a hundred 
thousand doll ars, and then if he has a lready been paid 
money under this, t hen he accounts for that back. 

Mr . Chairm an: Mrs. Watson ? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don't know. Maybe 
the Legal Ad visor could ad vise me. Does the judge when 
he makes his award. does he indicate whether it will be a 
lump sum or it will be over periodic payments or 
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monthly payme nts O\'Cr a pen od ol time. Is the ' tctim 
given the choi ce or is the award designa ted b~· the 
jud ge '! 

:\1r. Legal Advisor: :\1r. Cha n·man. tt would be a 
limited choice The person would normally be rep­
resented by a legal advisor who would calculate wha t he 
thought best for his client and ask the judge to make an 
award of that nature. It would have regard to the cir­
cumstances. It might be a tempora ry injury tha t would 
be capable of being cured in two years time. in which 
event periodic payments would be bes t. It might be loss 
of a leg. an eye. or an arm. in which event a lump s um 
might be better to enable the person to inves t his money 
or do something with it. It is a matter for the judge in 
combination with the legal advisors of the person who 
was making the application . With the consent. I pre­
sume. of whoever the counsel for the Crown was at the 
time. 

:\1r. Chairman: Ms. :Ylillard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman. l presume Civil Legal 
Aid would be applicable in this case also'> 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes and no. Mr. Chairman. I'd 
jus t as soon not answer that ques tion . 

Ms. Millard: Well , maybe if Mr. Legal Advisor 
could just expand a bit on the yes and no? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The reason, Mr. Chairman, l 
answered yes and no, is because l would just as soon not 
answer the question. 

Ms. Millard: Is that possible? 

Mrs. Watson: Now we're curious. 

Ms. Millard: Is that possible in a free country, in a 
democracy, in a legislature that some members that 
ask a question as an advisor can say h~ would just as 
soon not answer. That's ridiculous. 

Mr. Chairman: The Legal Advisor can. 

Ms. Millard: Well can someone el se answer 
perhaps then? 

Mr. Chairman: Perhaps a member of the Execu­
tive Committee could assis t us . Perhaps Ms. Millard 
you'd like to repea t your question for the benefit of the 
members of the E xecutive Committee who are in a tte n­
dance in spirit -

Hon. Mr. McKinnon : I move that queston die in 
Committee. 

Ms. Millard : Mr. Chairman, the question is. would 
Civil Legal Aid apply to someone who wants to receive 
compensation for being a victim of a crime? 

5Hon. Mr. McKinnon. Mr. Chairman, I don't know 
of anything in the Civil Legal Aid Ordinance that pre-
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\'t'!lls such an applleation . I thmk it's --

\ts. \Iillard: Well. \lr Chait 'l''''l I tlunk the Ordi-
nance 1s prctt\ strmght lomard th Cl\ ilLegal 
:\1d from what I remember lromlasl , 1011. And there 
was a list of things that were appl ical>l•.'. obviously some 
orw should b€' famil iar with that Ordinance. 

:\ltr. Legal Advisor: I'm \er~· famil iar w1th the Or­
d mance Perhaps the answer should 11e there's nothing 
in the CiVIl Legal Aid Ord mancr wluci. would prevent a 
person getting Cml Legal <\id ior such an applica tion. 

'\Is. \1illard: \1r. Chairman. I wonder whv the hesi­
tancy because certainly a victi'11 of crime could be a 
poor' person who just can't 1fford a lawyer. I can't see 
wh•, there's so much hes1tntion to just say yes it's ap­
pli(•Jble and I would have sal down and there would n't 
have been this a ttention drawn to it. r think it's only fair 
that a person who IS, what's the purpose of Civil Legal 
Aid if it isn't for things like this? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Well. Mr. Chairman, it's al­
ways been Mr. Legal Advisor's point that he doesn ' t 
give free legal advice in the House. What I'm saying 
there's nothing in that Civil Legal Aid that prevents a 
person applying for compensation as a victim crime. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think there is. I think 
there are going to be regulations which state what peo­
ple are eligible for Civil Legal Aid and I think your 
income is certainly going to define who is eligible for 
Legal Aid. But if some one does who is eligible for Legal 
Aid and who does take this case for compensation and 
they receive compensation, then Legal Aid, costs of 
Legal Aid will be reinbursed out of the compensation. I 
would hope, is that correct? 

Mr. Legal Advosor: Normally speaking yes, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, perhaps one of us will 
just have to become a victim and test the whole case 
before we'll know the answer. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, she she's too affluent 
to apply for Civil Legal Aid anyway . 

Ms. Millard: Where. how? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: What? 

Mr. Chairman: Would vou take the chair for a mo-
m€'nt pl ease? · 

Mr. McCall: By all means Mr Chair man. 

:\lr. McCall becomes Chairman 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd. have you got a ques­
tion'' 

Mr. Hibberd: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do rise on 
the same point that I rose when this Bill was with us 
before. The purpose of this Bill is to aid a victim of 
crime. The person who suffers most is the victim of 
crime is the person who's going to need the most money. 
He is the one who is going to be most crippled and that is 
the one person you're cutting out. The very principle of 
insurance is that it should have no other limit, the per­
son who really needs it is the guy who really is taking the 
beating. 

So I would like to be considered although I see it is 
not in accordance with the Government of Canada 
where legislation drawn up, but it should be considered. 
This is the actual forum we should be thinking. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Cha irman I couldn't 
agree more with the principle that the Honourable 
Member has espoused. The problem is that just like in 
all of the agrements with Canada such as the medicare 
and the other agreements, that they will cost share up to 
a certain I imi t. So if we have five victims that all needed 
a hundred thousand dollars in the course of a year , 
would mean that from the taxpayers of the Yukon Ter­
ri tory after the limit has reached that, the total expendi­
ture would have to come out of Genera l Revenues. And 
that's the problems with the agreements with Canada 
that those are in effect the same as the Honourable 
Member knows the cost sharing agreement under the 
Yukon Health Care Insurance Plan with the Federal 
Government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hibberd? 

Mr. Hibberd: Thank you, Mr. Chairman , I was 
quite aware as I did allude to in what! said , that this was 
the principle. But I do think that it must be stated on the 
floor of this House --

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Hibberd. I will pass 
the chair back to you. 

Mr. Hibberd becomes Chairman 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. McCall. Two. 

(Reads Clause two) 

<Chairman reads Preamble) 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: This again bothers me where we are 
back dating it to April 1st, 1975, can we do that? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Legally and properly speaking, 
Mr. Chairman, yes. Our agreement with Canada ex­
tends back to that date. We have received no formal 
application for compensation of many victims. So there 
is no case at hearing, no case control, but it could hap­
pen and known to us some victim might be waiting to 
make his claim, but then he could be governed by the 



rules that came into force after he made his application. 

:vir. Chairman: I will entertain a motion. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. I would move 
Bill No. 13 out of Committee without amendment. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: I'll second that. 

Mr. Chairman: t has been moved by Mr. McKinnon. 
seconded by Mr. Lang. that bill No. 13 be moved out of 
Committee without amendment. Are you ready for the 
question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you in favour'? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Chairman: Motion is carried. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Motion Number 19 

Mr. Chairman: We will proceed to Motion No. 19. 
Moved by the Honourable Member from Ogilvie, sec­
onded by the Honourable Member from Klondike that it 
is the opinion of this House that education in the Yukon 
Territory should directly reflect the needs and the de­
sires of the communities it serves, and fur ther that the 
document "Barriers to Educaton" be referred to the 
Department of Education for a review with interested 
organizations with the understanding that a written 
commentary will be for th coming to the Yukon Legisla­
tive Assembly. Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I have stood so many 
times on this Motion that I only feel I am repeating 
myself. My main contention, at this point, is tha t we 
should have a repl y from the Department of Education 
on the issues which were brought up in the document 
"Barriers to Education". I find it unacceptable that 
there hasn't been any reply up to this point. It is almost a 
little beyond the fact now, any credibility that the De­
partment may have had with the Indian People has gone 
out the window, I am afraid, because they haven' t re­
plied to the very important questions that have been 
brought up. I am just hoping that this afternoon there 
might be some kind of reply to the things that we have 
been discussing and the evidence that we have that the 
communities are wanting some kind of reply and some 
kind of action on these matters. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I won' tgo that far 
actually, but the thing is that, I think the motion says 
just about everything that needs to be said, and in sec­
onding the motion my stress is that I would like to get 
assurance from the Department of Education that there 
will be a reply. There will be a meeting with the people 
interested in this particular subject. especially since 

this report a "Barrier to the E<:ducation·· t'ameout. :\0\\ 

those people may ha\·e some thmg to talk about. that 
they didn't have in the past. and I think that all I am 
actually looking for ts an assu rance from the :VI inister ol 
Education th<1 t such a consulta tion wil l take place. 

:\1r. Chairman: :\1r . Lang·' 

Hon Mr. Lang: \1r. Chairman. I haven' t had an 
opportuntty to speak to the !'eport "Barriers to Edut'a ­
tion" . At this time I onlv want to make one com ment in 
reference to it. and I would l ike to suggest. \1r. Chair­
man. that it is qui te obvious that :vtr. Parnell makes his 
I iving writing repor ts . The reason I say this he has been 
in the Yukon six months and has written two reports. 

I would like to suggest. \1r. Cha irman. tha t if \1r. 
Parnell is going to write any more reports in the future. 
about the governmen t. and iL<; policies. I would suggest 
that he come to the department responsible. to discuss 
those policies in order that he ca n ana lyse them 
thoroughly. rather than at tempt to ana lyse them 
through the news media or press clippings. 

A person would think this would only be fai r to his 
clients. as well as . the public at large. As far as the 
motion is concerned. Mr. Chairman. I reallv can't see 
any reason for the motion. I have assured ·this I louse 
that I would come back with an analysis of the paper 
"Barriers to Education" and I wi ll do that. The tim ing. I 
cannot guarantee at the present time . my superinten­
dent is not all that well. and. also. my two assistant 
superintendents wil l be going outside for teachers· in­
terviews. which is approximately a three week process. 
Mr. Chairman, as far as the motion. I'd like to refer the 
Honourable Members to the School Ordinance which 
specifically states the duties of school committees. 

The Department attempts to accommodate the 
needs of the school committees wherever possible. and I 
think this has been demonstrated for the last couple of 
years. If it is not possible to comply with the rP.quest. it is 
the policy of the department to let the school committee 
know what the decision is and why they have made that 
decision . 

I would also like to suggest. Mr. Chairman. that if 
the Department 's pol icies are so oppressive, which 
some Honourable Members seem to think that they are. 
I would suggest it would be to the benefit of areas. which 
are unhappy with the department, to apply for school 
board status. which is available through the present 
school legislation. The Department of Education would 
be more than happy to cooperate in helping form the 
necessary jurisdictions. 

Once they have accepted the obl igations inherent in 
the formation of a School Board, they will have more 
responsibility in running the school system. As I stated 
earlier during the discussions of the report in Commit­
tee, I undertook to bring back a Departmental Position 
Paper on allocations contained in that report. I did not 
commit my department officials to further discussion 
with interest groups or whatever. We're prepared to 
bring, if they're prepared to bring up papers or presen­
tations to a department, we are prepared to accept 
them. But I think it is up to this Committee to give the 
department an opportunity to air its point of view. In 
other words, what I'm asking this Committee is to give ) 
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t ilt• I>Ppart llll'nl ot ~:<:ctuea t 1011 <'quat t 1111e - because 1 t has 
not had that up to this point 

:\lr. Chairman: :\lr Lcngerke 

:\1r. Lengerke: :\lr Chairman. I \\-ill be supporting 
:\lotion number 19: I see nothing wrong with it what­
soe\·er and I would hope that it does not conflict with 
prl•sent policy. a nd I don't believe it does. 

:\1r. Chairman: \1rs. Watson'! 

\1rs. Watson: :\'lr. Chairman. I will not be support­
ing \lot ion 19 for one very basic reason and that is. part 
of the wording in the second paragraph: I have a very 
strong reason for wanting to delete the words that the 
document .. Barriers to Educations" be referred to the 
Department of Education for review with interested 
organizations with the understanding that a written 
commentary will be forthcoming to the Yukon Legisla­
tive Assembly by the next session of the Yukon Legisla­
tive Assembly. I would hope that the Department of 
Education. we have hired. our Government hired,qual­
ified educators. They should be qualified educators if 
thev're on the staff. 

·Now the .. Barriers to Ed uca Lion .. report is basi­
cally a political report on education but it does have a 
background and a very extensive bibliography referral 
as part of that report, and that is the meat of the report, 
that is the techniques of education, that is the area of 
education that we want examined. We can- we've had 
the political pitch. which is fine, that's part of our demo­
era tic process: but I want to make a decision, not on just 
a pol illcal lobby or a political pitch, and I think Mr. 
Parnell did an excellent job in that instance by giving all 
of the references that he used to substantiate the state­
ments that he made regarding education. And that is the 
thing that we're very concerned about, is education. 

I asked Mr. Parnell when he was here whether he 
had done some work with children who come from a 
different cultural background and who go into a school 
system where their native tongue is not used in the 
school system, have they done some work and how you 
can overcome that difference, and he said yes they 
have, there has been research done on it and he'd be 
very happy to send this information to me. 

I haven't received it but it is evident that Mr. Par­
nell realizes there are things in education, principles of 
education, that are at stake. And what I would like our 
educators that are on our staff to do, to forget the poli­
tics of it and to take the report, to go through the bibliog­
raphy, to assess the comments tha t Mr. Parnell has 
made, and come back to the Minister of Education so 
tha t he can table in this Assem bly a report on the educa­
tion principles to the " Barrie rs of Education" It's on 
this type of thing 

We have to have advice on this. Whe n we have that 
advice, then we take into consideration the politics of it 
and then you make your decisions. And I would ha te to 
think that we are not going to be abl<' to get an assess­
ment on the pr inciples of the educations that are used 111 
thr ··Barriers to Education". I would move an amend­
ment to Motion number 19, to delete "with interes ted 
orgamzat10ns with the understanding that a written 
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commentary wi ll be forthcoming to the Yukon Legisla­
tive Assembly by the next session" and I would 
substitute- Mr. Chairman. may I just take a few mi­
nutes to write down my amendment? 

:Yir. Chairman: Sure. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, can I just make a 
few points here? 

Mr. Chairman: I think you'd better hold it. She is 
proposing an amendment. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: I just want to make one comment. 
Mr. Chairman, the only thing that concerns me here, 
other than the fact that I think that the education de­
partment should get a fair hearing, the other thing that 
concerns me is the time factor - any guarantee of time. 
I'll do my best to have it coming in the next session when 
it's called. but I want to point out that my two superin­
tendents, urban and rural, are at the present time 
evaluating teachers and going out presently in the next 
week or so to interview teachers for the forthcoming 
year. 

Now. they are not-- I just got a memo from one of the 
superintendents stating that he is not sure of whether or 
not he can evaluate all the teachers, and this is a crucial 
part of our education system, to see all our new teachers 
get evaluated this year. And I know they're working 
very hard and working at night. 

Another point, I think, has to be brought up in re­
gards to the time factor is that we will be going in to 
negotiations with the Yukon Teachers Association, 
which is going to take a lot of time and a lot of effort on 
behalf of the Department. 

We have in the Department four qualified 
educators. So I'm just saying, to you, as far as any 
guarantee or time, I really don 't think I can give it to 
you. I'd like to but I don't think- I know I'm not in that 
position to guarantee it. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I certainly didn't ask 
for a book. All I want even is a page- all I want, I don't 
know what the other members would want. But there 
are accusations in here that I feel should be im­
mediately answered if possible. We've certainly given 
the Department well over a month of discussion of this 
document, whether they 're sick or in the field or inter­
viewing teachers, if that's the case, if they can'tspend a 
little while looking at a book and making some com­
ments on it I think that we 'd better hire some more 
people. There are some very important things in here 
that need to be answered and should have been ans­
wered by now. It's amazing to me that the political 
acumen of the Department is so low that they can't see 
the responsibil ity that they have towards the people. 
Order - there's no disorder at the moment, not ye t. 

I really don 't see that this written comme ntary has 
to be taken so ter ribly seriously that it has to be 50 pages 
long or anything else. We have Legislative Returns 
commg back all the time of 7. 8, 9, 10 pages - why not one 
of t hose'? It seems simple enough to me to reply because 



the Department should know these answers. They 
should be able to stand up right now and say why they 
have an anti-racist. so called. policy. Why is it'' It would 
be easy enough to answer right away--

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. I take an objection 
to that . to what the Honourable Member has said. and 
I'd like a re traction right now because that is not the 
case at all. 

And if the Honourable Member did her homework. 
I'll tell you she 'd be a hell of a lot. excuse me . a lot better 
off. 

Ms. Millard: Well , Mr. Chairman, I'll just ignore 
that comment because it really didn't supply me with 
any information. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. on a point of 
privilege . A ques tion of privilege. Mr. Chairman, I 
stated on the House on many occasions and I'll continue 
to state it. that I am not going to be a member of a 
government that has anti-racis t policy and if there are 
any anti-racist policies in this government I want to 
know about them so that they can be purged from the 
Statute Books. Mr. Chairman, if I thought for one mi­
nute that any of my colleagues on the Executive Com­
mittee had those kinds of feelings, I would not be a 
member of this government and a member of the Ex­
ecutive Committee. And I think this calls-- there was a 
charge made clearly, that this go\ernment has anti­
racist policies and I just as a part of the government 
cannot accept that. I think an apology is in order. Mr. 
Chairman , from the member who made that remark. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard , are you willing to reply 
to that? 

Ms. Millard: I don't recall saying anything that 
needs retracting except that I would-- all that I've been 
saying is that I would like some reply to the questions 
which are brought up in the documents. 

Mr. Chairman: There are accusations made on 
your behalf and there has been a question of privilege 
raised. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I apologize for any 
embarrassment to the Department of Education. 

Mr. Chairman: That was not what was asked of you. 

Ms. Millard : I'm sorry. could I have a read-back 
then, because I was busy trying to keep .... 

Mr. Chairman: The accusation was a prejudice , 
racial prejudice. 

Ms. Millard: Oh yes . well , yes, one of the accusa­
tions in this paper is that - not of racial prejudice. The 
question that I brought up was that according to news­
paper reports and everything else there is. the Depart­
ment of Education stands. 

Hon. \lr. '\1cKinnon: I think that till' on!:- W<l~· ol 
dealing wi th it IS as lor the remark to cmrw 111 and thl'll 
the Chair has to deal w hcther there \':as a '' hetlwr the 
charge was m<.t de that the go\'ernment of the YL; ,,on 
Territorv lws a ractst policy and if so whether an e~pol ­
ogy is in order I don·t think we c·1n do any•thing unltlthe 
remark ts given to the Cha tr 

Mr. Chairman: The ~tatcment made b.v \1s :vtill artl 
"They should be able 10 :->!and up and say why• the~ haw 
an anti-racial so called policy. Why ts it'' It should be 
easy enough to answer nght mvay ... At that powt an 
apology was req ucsted from the :vt inister . I t hmk on the 
question an apology t!; lorthcomtng. 

Ms . Millard: Mr. Chatr man. I have a l reatl :. 
apolog ized for any comments that I have made that 
embarrassed the De partment. I apologize again tf 
that's necessary. Per haps. it is my way of saying th ings. 
because wha t I reall y meant to say at tha t pomt and 
what it still says to me. unfortunately. IS that the De­
partment has consistently persisted in saying that they 
have an anti-racist policy. That they do not have a ra­
cist. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: :vir. Cha irman. this is not the case 
at all. 

Mr. Chairman : Ord er please. 

Ms. Millard: Well. 

Mr. Chairman: Order please. Ms . Millard The 
question of privilege has been raised that there is a 
racist or anti-racist invol ved in the Department of Edu­
cation . You have not answered that charge. I will ask 
Mr. Speaker to resume the Chair. 

MR. SPEAKER RESUMES THE CHAIR 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker. what has been sta ted 
by our department is that we ha ve a non-discriminatory 
policy. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman. I will accept the word 
" non-discriminatory" if tha t helps. 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to Order. 
May I receive a report from the Chair man of Commit­
tees? 

Mr. Hibberd: Yes. Mr. Speaker . on discussion of 
Motion No. 19. the statement was made by the Honoura­
ble Member from Ogilvie, "they should be able to s tand 
up and say why they have an anti-racist so called pol­
icy ... At that point a question of privilege was ra1sed of 
whether there is this anti-racist policy present. and 
there has been no reply to that forthcoming from the 
Member. 

Mr. Speaker: Might I know who has ra ised the ques­
tion of privilege'? 

Mr. Hibberd: The Honourabl e Member from 

) 

) 



\\'lntl'ilor,.;l' \ol'llt t'l'llll'l' 

lion. \lr. \kKinnun: \lr Spl'o~kt•r.tlwqul',.;ttoll\l'as 
ongtnall~· ratst•d 1>.1 tile llotHHtr .• ; · • \!(>mht•r Jrom 
\\'llltl'ltorse I 'orter Cn•Pk. and \1 r Chatl'lll<lll on hearing 
tlw n•nwrk pla~t·d hilck. I am of personall.l till' op1111011 
that then• 11 as no Qlll'"' ton of prtl'tlege ht•caust• I th111k a 
non dtsn1111111ator~· poltc.\ and an antt-rm·t..;t poll(·~· can 
Ill' S,\'llllll.\'lllllliS <II HI tiHlSl' a rt• t ht• t,\'J)l'S ol pro~l'ill llS thaI 
\It' hope that all gO\'l'l'llllH'Ill progr;1111s ;trt• tcmards all 
till' people ol the Yukon TetTttor.' 

\lr. Speaker: IIH'Itt'll' tiH• qut•stton that till' Chair 
shout d t·onstdt•r ts whet her tIll' Chatrmanont·onstdering 
a qut•stton of pn1 tlt•ge had a-.;kl•d tlw \lpmiJpr to with­
drall tlw statemt•nts or has am thtng of thts m't'urrecl'.' 

\lr . Hibberd: The rPqttl'st was made lor anopolog~· 
lor t hat statemt•nt . \lr Spt•akl'r 

'\lr. Speaker : \1,' as an a pol og~· I ort lwonJtng I or that 
St<ltl'mt'llt •> 

\lr . Hibberd : That. \lr. Speaker. can onl.1· beans­
\l't'rt'd IIHiirectly .\n apolog~· was made as described b.v 
tht' \lt•mber from Whitehorse :'\:orth Centre. 

:\1r. Speaker: Perhaps. iflma~· bepermllted . would 
the llonourablc \!ember from Ogil l'it' be prepared to 
wtthdraw or apologize lor the statements that ha1·c 
seemed oflcnsil'e to the \ !embers 111 Commi ttee·• The 
llonourablc \ 1cmber from Ogtl vte'' 

:\ts. \Iiiiard: Yes. \1r. Speaker. for about the fourth 
time I will say I apologize for an~· embarrassment I 
caused by using the term "antt-rac ist ". :'>io n­
discriminatory might be an easier thing to accept. 

:vir. :vtcCall: A point of order. \ 1r. Speaker ·> 

\1r. Speaker : The Honourable \!ember from Pelly 
l{iver·> 

Mr. :vtcCall: :vir. Speaker.the member was asked a 
question was she proposed was she prepared to w i th­
draw the statement 

:vir. Speaker: The llonourable :VI ember from Ogil ­
l'ie'! 

\1s. \1illard: :\-Jr. Speaker. I ha1·e made so man~· 
statements in the last ten minutes that it is hard to find 
which one I am supposed to withdraw. I have been try­
ing to reorganize my thoughts and make the definitions 
a I it Ue clearer so that no one gets upset by them. to this 
point I certmnly withdraw anything that I have said 
this af ternoon that has caused embarrassment and I 
certainly have no way of. I am not tr~·ing to imply that 
the Deppartment is racist 

\1r. Speaker: Is the Honourable :\!ember from 
Whitehorse North Centre prepared to accept thts apol­
ogy'! The Honourable \lember from \\'hitehorse Porter 
Creek'? 

lion. \lr. Lang: I ,,·i ll <l<'l't'pt that apology on twhalf 
ol tilt• \lt'tnber 

\lr. Speaker: What ts \'Our wtsh at this time·? :'v1av 
lit' han' a rt•port I rom the Chairman of Commit tees:, 

:\Jr. llibberd: Yes. \ l r. Speaker. Committee con­
\'Ctll'd at 10 ·50 .\ \I to dtscuss Bills. Sessional l'apers. 
\lotions. 

\ l r \Iiller was in attendance while Committee pur­
sut•d . with enthusiasm. t he reading of Bill :.lumber 2. It 
was mo1ed by \Jr. \ l cKtnnon. seconded by \ lr Lang. 
that Btl! :.lumber 2 be reported out of Committee wtth­
out amendment This motton was dulv earned. with 
glee · 

Bill :'>lumber :3 was then react. It was moved bl' \ l r 
\ l cKinnon. seconded bl' \Jr . \lcCall. that Bill :.luniber :3 
be reported out ofCom'mittee wtthout amendments and 
this motion carried. 

Commit tee then read Bill :.lumber 16. It was moved 
b~· \lr . \leKinnon. seconded b~· \ l r Lang. that Bill 
:.lumber 16 be r eported out of Committee without 
amendments This motion carr ied. 

Commtttee recessed at 12 noon and recon1·enecl at 2 
p.m . accompanying \1r. Comm issioner was \ lr. John 
\lcl'hatl Personnel Director as a witness dunng Com­
mittee clause b.v clause reading of Bill Number 8. 

\lr 1\ick Lampshire. business agent for Y T.P.S ... \ 
. \Irs. Kay Campbell. pr esident of Y.T.P.S A. and :'vir. 
Jim \ l cCullough. chief shop steward. Y.T P.S.A. pre­
sented a brief to Committee on Bill :'>lumber 8. 

It was moved bv \ Jr. \1cCall. seconded b\' \lr 
Berger. that Bil l :'>llllllber 8 be left to die in Comniittee. 
This mot ion earned. 

I t was mol'ed bv \ 1r. \ t cCall. seconded b\' \ 1r 
Lengerke. that Bill Number 9 be left to die in Coinmit­
tee. this motion earned. 

Committee then read Bill :'>lumber 13. It was moved 
by \ 1r. :'v1cKinnon. seconded by \lr. Lang. that Bi ll 
~umber 13 be preported out of Committee without 
amendment. This motion carried. 

Committee considered \lotion 19. This item has 
been left in Committee. :vir. Speaker then resumed the 
chair by request of the Chairman . 

:\1r. Speaker: You hal'e heard the report of the 
Chair man of Committee: are .vou agreed·> 

Some Members: Agreed . 

:\1r. Speaker : \lay I hal'e your further pleasure'' 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Htverdale'? 

:\-tr. Lengerke: \1r. Speaker . I move that we now 
call it five o'clock . 

:\1r. Speaker: Is there a seconder'? 

:\.-1r. Fleming: I second that. 

\lr. Speaker: It has been moved bv the Honourable 
\!ember from Whitehorse Rtverdale .'seconded b\ the 
Honourable \!ember from 1-lootalinqua. that we do now 
call it five o'clock. Are :--·ou prepared for the questton'' 



Some \1embers: Question . 

:\'lr. Speaker: Are .vou agreed".' 

Some :\'~embers: Agreed. 

:\'lr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car­
ried. 

I .WOTION CARRIED ) 

:\'lr. Speaker: This House now standee! adjourned 
until 10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning. 

ADJOURNED 

) 

) 

) 
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LEGISLATIVE ltETUR:'II :'110. II 
11976 First Session 1 

\1 r . Speaker 
\!embers of Council 

\1arch 12. 1976 

On Vlarch 10. 1976. Councillor Fleming asked the follow­
ing question: 

··what is being done to the old Tagish bridge now·' Is 
there going to be a new bridge at another location and 
what kind of br idge will it be? Would the government 
make the plans for a proposed bridge available to Coun­
cil before the tender is let"l 

The answer is as follows: 

Soil testing is now being carried out for a proposed new 
bridge to be built in the same location as the present 
bridge. The design and cost estimates will be developed 
based on the soil conditions found in this testing process. 
Pl ans will be available to Council when the appropria­
tion is placed before the House. 

M.E. Miller, 
Ass istant Commissioner 

t Administrative l 
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